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The Yukon Legislative Assembly 
lDecember 2, 1975 

December 2nd, 1975 

CMr. Speaker reads Daily Prayer) 

Mr. Speaker: Madam Clerk, is there a quorum 
present? 

Madam Clerk: There is, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order. 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: We will proceed with the Order 
Paper. Are there any Documents or Correspondence 
for tabling? The Honourable Member for Whitehorse 
West. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Speaker. I have for 
tabling this morning, Legislative Return Number 2. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Documents or 
Correspondence for tabling? Are there any Reports of 
Committees? Introduction of Bills? The Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Bill Number 5, lntrothced 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
Riverdale, for leave to introduce Bill Number 5, " An 
Ordinance to Amend the Game Ordinance". 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse Riverdale 
for leave to introduce Bill Number 5, "An Ordinance to 
Amend the Game Ordinance". Are you prepared for 
the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

M1-. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Introduction of 
Bills? Are there any Notices of Motion or Resolution? 
Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of 
Papers? 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
Riverdale. 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I have Notice of 
Motion pertaining to amendments for the regulatiohs 
under the Motor Vehicles Ordinance. 

M1·. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of 
Motion or Resolution? Are there any Notices of Motion 
for the Production of Papers? This then brings us to the 
question period. 

Madam Clerk, could you ascertain if Mr. Com­
missioner would be attending the House this morning? 

CMadam Clerk leaves room ) 

QUESTION PERIOD 

M1·. Speaker: At this time I will declare a brief 
recess. 

Recess 

M1·. Speaker: At this time I will call the House to 
order. 

Have you any questions? 
The Honourable Member from Mayo? 

Question Re: Tutorial Program 

Mr. Mcintyre: I have a question for the Minister of 
Education. This may be either treated as a written or 
an oral answer. 

The tutorial program has been financed for the 
three years ending the 31st of March, 1976 by the 
federal government. Is it the intention of the Depart­
ment to continue this program in 1976-77? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I would like to take 
that as a written question. 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I have answers to 
two questions "that were asked yesterday. May I 
proceed? 

Mr. Speaker: Proceed. 

Mr. Commissioner: One question from Councillor 
Millard was, "Has consideration been given to having 
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Hire North operate in Yukon"? 
Mr. Speaker, the program Hire North is actually an 

arm of the Northwest Territories government, prin­
cipally concerned with employment and training in the 
construction industry. The program employs the 
construction of the MacKenzie Valley Highway as the 
vehicle through which training is conducted , and 
subsequently employment is achieved. As the program 
is a branch of the N.W.T. government, this government 
has not considered operating the same program in the 
Yukon. 

Another question from Councillor Millard, the 
question being, "Will the Community Employment 
Program replace Outreach"? The answer, Mr. 
Speaker, the program at this point in time is entitled a 
"Developmental Phase Community Employment 
Strategy". The prefix , "Developmental Phase" is very 
important as it depicts the true spirit of what is in­
tended. 

The program will not replace Outreach, nor will it 
precipitate the creation of a completely new 
organization , but will instead incorporate existing 
programs and resources to achieve the greatest 
possible benefit in regards to the objectives that have 
been established. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I have a reply to a 
question asked by the Honourable Member from 
Ogilvie regarding correctional institute inspectors. 

The five correctional institute inspectors in the 
Yukon are Judge Maddison , Family Court Judge lone 
Christensen, the Bishop of Yukon, the Right Reverend 
John T. Frame, the Territorial Government Legal 
Advisor , Mr. O'Donoghue, and the Chief Medical 
Health Officer. 

The most recent inspection was made two weeks 
ago by Mr. O'Donoghue. We are also inspected 
regularly by the federal health inspector. In the past. 
these inspections have only been made when there was 
a specific complaint , but inspectors a re free to visit the 
institute at any lime, either individually or as a group. 
I would like to add, Mr. Speaker, that the Com­
missioner and the Executive Committee, and they are 
responsible , are also frequent visitors. 

Mr. Speake•·: Any further questions . The 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. 

Question Re: fnc:reasefn Per Capita Grants 

M•·. Lengerke: I have a question-oh he's not here. I 
was going to say the Minister of Local Government. 
Maybe the Commissioner can answer this one for me 
then. What action if any has the Government taken in 
connection with the request from the Yukon 
Association of Municipalities with respec t to the per 
capita, to an increase in the per capita grants. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker the answer to that 
leading question will arrive when the tabling of the 
budget, approximately some time in late February of 

1976. 

M•·· Speake•·: Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale. 

Mr. Lengerke: Just maybe further to that Mr. 
Speaker I wanted to comment that Municipalities are 
now preparing their budgets and it would do well for 
this Assembly to take some action in that regard and 
give them some lead. That should be something we 
should do. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker sufficient unto the 
day is the evil thereof. 

Mr. Speaker: Have you any further questions. We'll 
then r eturn to the Order Paper and proceed with 
Motions. 

Moflon Number 5 

We have Motion number 5 moved by the Honourable 
Member from Kluane, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. That the 
Administration provide for this House background 
information required for Bill number 20, namely one, 
what classes of employees will be effected, two, what 
Labour laws or other jurisdictions have enforced re 
hours of work and any other pertinent information. 

The Honourable Member from Kluane. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker I think the Motion is self 
explanitory and the Honourable Member from Pelly 
River was kind enough to delay, to defer the second 
reading of Bill number 20 until we had this information. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable' Member from Pelly 
River 

Mr. McCall: I don 't know if this is appropriate Mr. 
Speaker, to ask at this time but I would like a ruling 
from the Chair. 

Mr. Speaker: Does the ruling pertain to Motion 
number 5. 

Mr. McCall: Yes it is. 

M•·. Speaker: Proceed . 

Mr. McCall: The ruling I have in front of me is from 
Standing Order 105 from 483. I would like a ruling 
before this Motion is moved further on. 

M•·. Speaker: In- 1 wonder if I could have in what 
respect. 

Mr. McCall: Whether it is appropriate at this time. 

Mr. Speaker: The Standing Order 105 and the an­
notations following it in Beauchesne segragate or 
seperate the difference between P ublic Bills and 
Private Bills and point out the fact that a Public Bill is 
in fact a statement of policy of Government. Whereas a 
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Priva te Bill asserts a fact which may or may not , 
which, well let us say a fact that has yet to be proven. 
Perha ps a t second reading of, I assume, that perhaps 
the Members is speaking of Bill number 20, a t second 
reading the matter could be discussed . But in relat ion 
to the Motion, the Motion asked for the provision of 
information, so the Chair would assume and the Motion 
would be in order and I do not see any link between this 
Motion and Bill number 20 if this is what is being asked. 
They are two clearly separa te things . In terms of 
proceedure. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Speaker , I'm to understand that 
this is a Motion of genera l pr inciple of this Bill . 

Mr. Speaker: The Chair has not been given that in· 
formation. I would ask the Honourable Member from 
Kluane without impairing her ability to speak further 
in this debate, a second time if she could ask me wha t 
her intentions are in relation to this Motion. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, it's quite obvious that 
Bill number 20 we require fur ther information in order 
that we can make a decision regarding Bill number 20, 
I would suggest tha t we have this information before 
we have second reading. 

Mr. Speaker: Well perhaps if that is the intent of the 
Member that perhaps Motion number 5 should be stood 
over and the matter considered when we discuss the 
Bill. It is not competent for the Chair to discuss a 
matter of the moving of a Bill until that matter is 
brought before the House and the question of the 
Motion is clearly contained in the Motion. Whatever 
the intent of the Member is , it's not, takes no part in 
anything else but the Motion . So if it's the intention of 
the mover and seconder of this Motion to proceed with 
it at this time the House is competent to deal with it , 
but the re can be no riders attached in terms of 
proceedure on this Motion . 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Speaker there is absolutely no 
r ider a ttached to this, I would proceed even if the 
second reading of Bill number 20 was not deferred, I 
would proceed with the Motion . 

Mr. Speake1·: Is there any further deba te on this 
Motion? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Speaker : Question has been called . Are you 
agreed? 

Some Members: Agr eed. 

Mr . Speake1·: Any disagreed? I shall declar e tha t 
the Motion is carried. 

Mol/on Corr/ed 

Mol/on Number 6 

Mr. Speaker: The next Motion is Motion Number 6. 
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It has been moved by the Honourable Member from 
Kluane, seconded by the Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre, "Whereas the Anti-Inflation 
Bill , C-73, recognizes that the provincial governments 
of Canada have the authority to enact appropriate 
provincial measures to fulfill the federal anti-inflation 
policy . 

Now therefore, this Council respectfully draws to 
the a ttention of the Honourable Pierre E. Trudeau, 
Prime Minister of Canada, that the provisions of the 
said Bill , C-73, fail to recognize the legislative 
responsibilities of this House pursuant to Section 16 of 
the Yukon Act, by providing that the wage and price 
cont rols will apply to the Yukon Territory. 

And this House regrets that during the preparation 
for Bill C-73 no prior consultation was had by the 
Government of Canada with the Government of the 
Yukon Territory, in similar manner to the consultation 
which occur red between the Government of Canada 
and representa tives of each provincial Government in 
Canada, notwithstanding that the legislative power of 
the Comm issioner-in-Counci l of the Yukon Territory 
has always been exercised in a fully responsible 
manner within the ambit of its constitutional powers". 

The Honourable Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker. too many of the 
members here, I'm sure this Motion seems a motion 
after the fact , because as I understand, Bill C-73 is 
being given third reading or has had third reading at 
the present lime. so the possibility and the probability 
of being able to change Bill C-73 are minimal. 

However, I think it very, very important for th is 
House to draw to the attention to the Prime Minister of 
Canada, that we in fact do have the legislative 
authority to enact the Anti-Inflation measures through 
our own legislation, and furthermore. that we have 
used this authority in the past in a very responsible 
manner. 

I think that it was a very unwise decision of the 
Federal Government to include the Yukon Territory in 
Bill C-73, which automatically took over that power 
from us. They enacted the anti-inflation measures in 
their Bill and didn't give us the opportunity to enact 
them in our legislation. I'm very confident that had 
they not done this, that the Yukon Territory would have 
been able to bring in Ordinances that would have 
brought into effect, the guidelines that the Federal 
Government was trying to establish in their battle 
against inflation. 

We were not even called together when the 
r epresenta tives from the other jurisdictions were 
called together with the Federal Government to 
discuss the methods that should be used to combat th is 
problem . this common problem across the country, 
and that is why I have brought this Motion before the 
House. We must continue to draw to the attention of the 
people in Ottawa that we are a responsible jurisdiction. 
I would hope very m uch that I have unanimous support 
from this House with this Motion, and I would also hope 
tha t th is House would concur that copies of this Motion 
be forwarded to our own M.P. and to our Yukon 
Senator . 

Thank you. 
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Mr. Speaket·: Any further debate? Are you 
prepared for the question? 

Somf' Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I declare the Motion carried. 
(Applause) 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Private Bills. 

PRIVATE BILLS 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River? 

Bill Number 20, Second Reading 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Speaker, I'm prepared to read this 
for the second time, this Private Members' Bill. I 
move, seconded by the Honourable Member from 
Klondike, that Bill 20 be read for the second time. 

Mt·. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Pelly River, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Klondike, that Bill Number 
20 be now read for a second time. Is there any debate? 

A Member: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Question has been called. Are you 
agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mt·. Speaker: Any disagreed? 

Some Members: Disagreed. 

Mr. Speaker: Madam Clerk. would you poll the 
House? 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable from Mayo? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 

Mr. llibberd: Agreed. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Klondike? 

Mr. Berger: Agreed. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Mr. Fleming: Disagreed. 

Madam Clet·k: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Disagreed. 

Madam ('Jerk : The Honourable Member for 
Ogilvie'l 

Ms. Millard: Agreed. 

1\Jadam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Disagreed. 

Madam ('Jerk: The Honourable Member for Pelly 
River'l 

Mr. McCall: Agreed. 

Madam Clet·k: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

lion. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, could I have a 
question here? 

At this point in time if there is disagreement in th is 
House that this Bill not be read for a second time, can 
the Honourable Member from Pelly River introduce it 
at a later date in this Session? 

Mr. Speaker: Not at this Session, no. 

lion. Mr. Lang: Well I'm agreed then. 

l\ladam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Agreed. 

Madam Clerk: Mr. Speaker, the vote is six yays, 
four nays. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is 
carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Public Bills. 

PUBLIC BILLS 

Mr. Speake•·: Bill Number 6. 

Amendment to Bill Number 6--Fist Reading 

lion. Mrs. Whyat·d: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Hootalinqua, first 
and second readings of the amendment to Bill Number 
6, "An Ordinance to Amend the Hospital Insurance 
Services Ordinance". 

Mr. Spt>aker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member-! believe that's for first reading to the 
amendment, is that correct? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Speaker . 
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Mr. Speaker : It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehor se West, and seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua, that the 
amendment to Bill Number 6 be now read a first time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question . 

Mr. Speaker: .Are you agreed? 
Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carr ied. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the amendment be read 
for the second time? 

Amendment to Bill Number 6, Second Reading 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Now, Mr. Speaker. I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, 
that the amendment to Bill Number 6 be read for the 
second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West , seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua, that the 
amendment to Bill Number 6 be now read a second 
time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for the 
third time? 

Amendment to Bill Number 6, Third leading . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Now, Mr. Speaker . I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, 
that Bill Number 6, " An Ordinance to Amend the 
Hospital Insurance Services Ordinance" be r ead a 
third time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua , tha t Bill Num­
ber 6 be now read a third time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members : Agreed. 
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Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to 
the Bill? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua , 
that Bill Number 6 do now pass and that the title be as 
on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the .Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua, that Bill Num­
ber 6 do now pass and that the title be as on the Order 
Paper . 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is 
carried, and that Bill Number 6 has passed this House. 

Motion Ca rried 

Bill Number 3, Third ltHdlng 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua that Bill 
number 3 an Ordinance to ammend the Area Develop­
ment Ordinance be now read a third time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua that Bill num­
ber 3 be now read a third time. Are you prepared for 
the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker : Are yoti prepared to adopt the title to 
the Bill . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: .Yes Mr. Speaker I move, secon­
ded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua that 
Bill number 3 do now pass and that the title be as on the 
Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the 
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Honourable Member from Hootalinqua that Bill num­
ber 3 do now pass and that the title be as on the Order 
Paper. Are you prepared for the question. 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mt·. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried 
and that Bill number 3 has passed this House. 

Motion Caarrled 

Bill Number J J, Tltlrd Reading 

lion. Mrs. Whyat·d : Mr. Speaker I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua that Bill 
number 11 an Ordinance to ammend the Community 
Assistance Ordinance be now read for a third time. 

Mt·. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua that Bill 
number 11 do now be read a third time. Are you 
prepared for the question. 

Some Members: Question. 

l\1t·. Speaket·: Are you agreed. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker I believe I have the right 
to express my opinions before third r eading on this 
Bill. 

Mt·. Speaker: Yes, proceed . 

Mrs. Watson: Very briefly Mr . Speaker I would like 
to commend the Government for this Bill. The 
Government is providing the fin ancial vehicle and 
defining it in Legislation, by law, the assistance that 
they are prepared to gi ve the smaller communities 
who are not eligible for T.V. under the C.B.C. program. 
I am very, very happy that this Bill has been brought 
in. That this assistance is defined by law and that the 
Government is ready and waiting with the funds if we 
can crack the bureaucratic structure within the 
Federal Department. Thank you. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further discussion. Are 
you prepared for the question. 

Soml' Members : Question. 

Mt·. Speaket·: Are you agreed . 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaket·: Are you prepared to adopt the title to 
the Bill . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua 
that Bill number 11 , an Ordinance to ammend the 
Community Assistance Ordinance do now pass and 
that the title be as on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West , seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua that Bill 
number 11 do now pass and that the title be as on the 
Order Paper. Are you prepared for the question. 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is 
carried and that Bill number 11 has passed this House. 

Motion Carried 

Mt·. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure at 
this time. Honourable Member from Pelly River. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Speaker I move that Mr. Speaker 
do now leave the Chair and the House resolve itself in 
the Committee of Whole to consider Bills , Sessional 
Papers and Motions. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the - oh is there 
a seconder. 

It has been moved by the Honourable Member from 
Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable Member 
from Klopdike that Mr. Speaker do now leave the 
Chair and the House resolve in the Committee of the 
Whole for the purpose of considering Bills, Sessional 
Papers and Motions. Areyou prepared for the question. 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre will take the Chair in Com­
mittee of the Whole. 

Mr. Speaker Leaves the Chair 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I will now call this Committee to 
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order and declare a brief recess. 

Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I will call the Committee to order. 
We will proceed with clause by clause reading of the 

Amendments to Bill No. 1, Highways Ordinance. 

Amendments to 8111 Number I, First Reading 

Seven, two. 
(Reads Section 7. (2)) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this is the point 
that was raised by the Honourable Member from 
Kluane. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I like the way the Sec­
tion is written. This gives us the authority to enter into 
agreements with other authorities, we don't have to 
specifically say provinces. It could be the State of 
Alaska, and I think this is what we were looking for. 
I'm quite satisfied . 

Mr. Chairman: 8. (3): 
(Reads Section 8. (3) ) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, there is two 
minor points -- well one minor point. Court was 
changed from upper case to lower case, because upper 
case would mean the high court, this means any court, 
and the word "illegal" is inserted to make it clear that 
the court would order illegal obstruction to be stopped 
but not legal. 

Mr. Chairman: 8. (4) ) 
(Reads Section 8. ( 4) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this is a point 
which was not raised during the debate here in the 
House. The original words in the last line were 
" recover it as an action in debt" , but there are other 
methods which do not require a form of court action for 
collecting money. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, is that a 
typographical error, " incurred in so doing so"? 

Mr. Chairman: I would assume so. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman, it appears to 
me to be legally, but I'm agreeable to taking out one of 
the "so's". 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, the int~'on :~· 
that the Section reads " recover his expenses ·incurred 
in so doing from that person". . ' 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: 11. (5): 
(Reads Section 11. (5) ) 
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Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this was the 
point raised by the Honourable Member from Kluane, 
to have the phrase at the end of the section reflect the 
wording in the earlier sub-section, which will be sub­
section (4) in that case, and also by the Honourable 
Member from Mayo, who pointed out that as the Sec­
tion is drafted, it includes the right-of-way and only the 
Crown will own the right-of-way. It may be otherwise 
with the buildings. 

Mr. Chairman: 12. (4) ) : 
(Reads Section 12. (4)) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, in this sub­
section, a point was made as to whether or not there 
would be formal procedures for notifying people of the 
intention to close a highway, so we inserted the word 
"may" in accordance with the regulations, and the 
regulations can then provide for the terms of notice in 
similar manner as the municipalities deal with the 
same question. 

mr.Chairman: 12. (5): 
<Reads Section 12. (5) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, in this sub­
section, there was a misprint. It originally said Section 
1, it should have been Section 4. It's still a misprint, I 
think it should be sub-section 4, I will have to check 
that. 

Mr. Chairman: 12. ( 6): 
(Reads Section 12. (6) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: This is also a typist's error, and 
the sub-section read sub-section ( 1) originally. 

Mr. Chairman: 23. (3): 
(Reads Section·23. (3) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this is a point 
which was raised by the Honourable Member from 
Kluane, that it didn't provide for a penalty against 
dealing with an information or destination indicator, so 
we changed the drafting in order to reflect that it co 
vers all of the items mentioned, and there's a number 
of paragraphs in sub-section ( 1) . 

Mr. Chairman: 25. (1): 
(Reads Section 25. (1) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the word " ad­
vertising" is taken out here. I'm sorry, "commercial" 
is taken out before "advertising". I beg your pardon. 

Mr . Chairman: 29. (1) (c): 
<Reads Section 29. (1) (c ) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this was amen-



Page 97 

ded to take care of a point raised by the Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua. 

Mr. Chairman: 32. (1) : 
.(Reads Section 32. (1) ) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, a minor change 
was made here to remove the expression "for a first of­
fence" which was anomalous. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Legal Advisor, 19. (1), I have a 
notation here that this was to be reviewed. 

Mr. Legal Adviso•·: It was reviewed Mr. Chairman 
and it was decided to make no change. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

l-Ion. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman I still have trouble 
with 19. (1) as I did when we first reviewd the 
Ordinance and I still feel that it should be rewritten. It 
gives the Peace Officer, I think, too broad a power. I 
think that perhaps he should have, have to show cause 
to somebody for what he does. Someone within this 
Government. This is the sitution "where a Peace 
Officer finds upon any land conditions existing which 
may cause danger to life or property of any person 
travelling on a Territorial Highway. the Peace Officer 
may enter upon the land with such equipment and 
persons as he deems necessary to do any acls 
necessary to remedy the conditions." I really feel tht 
the person should have some prior authority of doing, 
in order to invade a persons property and if that can't 
be done, then cause should be shown for any action to 
the Government that is taken by a Peace Officer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman I know what the 
Honourable Member from Watson Lake has in mind 

-but I do not feel that he needs to have any concern in 
that regard from this section. As it was explained 
during discussion of the section , if there is a sniper . 
sitting up above the Alaska Highway taking pot shots, 
aQd this has happened more than once in recent years, 
I am not going to be happy if the Peace Officer has to 
go run and get a piece of paper before he stops that 
action. I want him to be able to take action im­
mediately and enter on anybody 's land that it's 
necessary to enter. I really can't see why we are 
splitting ha\!S on this particular section 

M•·· Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 

Mr. Mcintyre: In regard to what the Honourable 
Minister of Health, Welfare just stated that, this 
doesn't deal with snipers or personal things it deals 
with land conditions. 

lion. i\1rs. Whyard: Well Mr. Chairman the 
Honourable Member's point is about entering private 
land , I think that 's that basic objection. 

M1·. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes Mr. Chairman , I was about to 
rise to say that most certainly if there was a sniper or 
someone involved the Criminal Code should more than 
adequately look after that. I really think that this 19. 
Cl) should be revised, in some manner, whereby the 
person or the Peace Officer must get some prior 
authority from a court or from somebody before 
embarking on a program which would take him on to 
the land and buildings and so forth and involve him 
with peoples personal things. 

Mr. Legal Adviso•·: Mr. Chairman would the 
situation be better if the land were defined the we're 
talking about , if found . on any land contiguous to a 
Territorial Highway, conditions . Then it makes it clear 
that we're talking about land which is immediately 
beside a Territorial Highway_ Because the sentence 
runs very vaguely when we're talking about any land, 
and I don't think that's the intention of the Ordinance. 
It might make it clearer that this is land immediately 
beside a Territorial Highway. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

Bon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman that would improve 
upon the section immensely, but even so I think the 
case was made, I believe it was the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, that perhaps an 
accident could occur and the Officer-has to enter the 
land in order to rescue a person who has left the high­
way and wound up on this property for whatever 
reason . I think that would be done in any event, you 
know I don't see why we have to give blanket per­
mission to Peace Officers to enter upon land just to 
remedy one certafn thing. I think in the case of an 
emergency as was suggested, and it was a good case in 
point, that this would be done in any event and I really 
don't feel that a Peace Officer, like a man's home is his 
castle, as I've said before and always has been and I 
think that this somehow infringes upon people's rights 
to property and to privacy. I still feel that a Peace 
Officer should have warrant or some authority to enter 
upon the land in question notwithstanding it is con­
tiguous to a Territorial Highway. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman as the section was 
written, I think we're getting away from the intent of 
the section to start with. When it says land conditions, 
and my interpretation of that automatically has 
nothing to do with a sniper, has nothing to do about 
entering anybodys home or something. It 's if there is a 
flood qr a washout and you're there with equipment 
and you've got to go onto the land next to the dangerous 
situation to overcome the land condition on the road, 
and that's why I think that we have to look very 
carefully into this section and look at section 20 sub 1. 
Where you can go on to somebodys land with a big 
scraper or cat or something and rip it up and the 
Government then is not responsible or not, the person 
is not entitled to compensation. I think maybe the 
Legal Advisor should , they should take this back and 
exactly determine what they are trying to do in 19. 20 
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and come back with a rewritten section. Because I 
can't support where the Government is not, does not 
have to compensate, au tomatically docs not have to. It 
doesn 't say. that they can't, but it certainly isn't very 
reassuring to anyone that if they have gone on and 
ripped your place a pa rt that they don 't have to com­
pensate for it or fix it up again. So I would suggest you 
review 19 and 20 and actually see what the intent was in 
19. I don 't think we're talking about what was intended 
by the Highways ranch when they wrote this section. 

Mr. Chait'man: Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I would concur with 
both Members who have spoken in concern to this 
particular subsection. I find this language a little too 
flexible for our Peace Officers to use and I would 
strongly suggest that it be completely reviewed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre . 

Mr. Mcintyre : , f agree with the Honourable 
Member from Kluane and previous speakers, the key 
section actually isn 't 19. ( 1) , it's 20. ( 1) . I think that this 
should be taken back to the Legislative Programing 
Committee for rethinking of the effect of 20. (1) on 
section 19. (1). 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. . 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. 1Chairman could we then 

have some indication from these Honourable Members 
as to what they wish in that section. 

Mr. Chait·man: Mr. F leming . 

Mr. Fleming: Yes Mr. Cha irman ~ too_disagree with , 
this, with 19.0). The wording there does imply that 
they can go onto tbe property and do anything they 
wish and .then there in !O.(H oo per BOA·'is entitled to 
compe!l8ation, and this in no way is.right. SU therefore 
I think .. that the Police Officer today amt·aiH.Mflcers 
have a mandate now to oo their job without ·hawng that 
even in there, myself. And I think if it is ·in 'there there 
should be something that says it would -tntitl~ a person 
to compensation. That 's my opinion. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor . 

Hon. Mr. Taylm·: Mr. Chairmnn perhaps the section 
would not-section 19. ( 1 l would not be as ob­
jectionable if it was imperative that the Peace Officer 
first must have obtained some sort of authority, either 
from the CommissioPier or from a Court or sometthing 
of that nature before entering upon the land and that 20. 
< 1 l be deleted. That people should be' entitled to 
compensation if they've been, if they can prove to a 
Board or to the Cour t or someone that they indeed have 
damages that they could claim . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr . Chairman I rise again in 
comm ent on that, 19. (I l as I did before.) just find it 
pretty hard to belie\'e that somebody would want a 
Police Officer to have pl'fmission to have to move a cat 
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in or a tractor or a number of men with shovels to clear 
away, say a pile of dirt, or debris, that was caused by a 
car plowing into a roadside ditch and up onto some 
adjacent land. I just can't see that, you know if you had 
to go to the Commissioner for this, well you would be 
days looking for that kind of authority. I have to agree 
and I think we talked about it earlier the section 20. (1) 
I think the person-I think we could make that clear 
that there could be some form of compensation offered, 
because certainly if somebody has to remove a fence of 
plow up somebodys lawn or a crop or whatever the 
case may be, or remove some trees, a shelter belt or 
whatever, I think the people should be entitled to 
compensation, but, I can't find any difficulty with 19. 
(1) at all. 

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman . 
In view of what the Hono'urable Member from 

Watson Lake stated, I would find it very difficult to 
confront an officer when he is doing a job doing his 
duties. In the case of an emergency, I would find it very 
difficult to send that poor peace officer to court in order 
to get ·permission to go on my property. 

I don 't think that is what we are implying as far as 
review. What we are saying is the flexibility should not 
oe allowed to the extent as to the language which i~ 
stated here. Section 21, I believe I brought that up 
before, I still feel there should be some compensation, 
if there has been some property damage. 

This is all I feel that the language should be 
reviewed for. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Flem ing? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, I would like to rise in support of 
that, Mr. Chairman, myself, that is what I was going to 
say. In some senses, I suppose the paragraphs do have 
merit, because, if they enter the land, and say the 
obstruction that was causing the trouble on the high­
way or, say a flashing light for some object that was 
out on a farm land, and caused people not to be able to 
see properly or something, they had to go and do this, if 
that was an act of God on that land, that it was there, I 
would say that they were eligible for compensation, if 
they went ana took - if the government did go or a 
police officer or anybody else, and removed that thing 
that they did not put there. 

On the other hand, if it was put there by the owner of 
the land, and was forced to be removed, I would say he 
would have no compensation, if he had done something 
that caused action to be taken aganist him, so I think 
we have two different articles to look at. 

Hon. M•·s. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, we haven 't 
heard too much from the Legal Advisor this morning, 
and so I would like to get into the peripheral subject 
matter of Section 200) which seems to intrigue the 
members this morning, regarding compensation for 
damages resulting from these acts described in Sec­
tions 18 or 19. 

Let us lake, for example, I think this is what we are 
djscussing; a crash or a pile-up on a highway; some of 
the vehicles land in somebody's property along the 
highway, okay, they catch fire, they burn something. A 
police officer comes along and. he restores order from 
chaos. and eventually somebody who owns that land 
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says,''hey, I have got to get compensation for this 
damage. " 

Are you telling me here this morning that the peace 
officer and the government who sent him there, are 
then liable to provide compensaton, or are you telling 
me .that the veh~cle owners who caused thedamage 
arehable to provtde compensation? This gets a little 
dicey. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I have no dif­
ficulty in formulating a recommendation to the 
government that where a public officer of any sort, 
peace officer or otherwise, is forced by emergency 
conditions to do damage to property, to remove a flood, 
to haul vehicles off the highway for the safety of people 
passing by. I have no difficulty at all in recommending 
to the government that compensation should be 
payable to the unfortunate property owner who has no 
responsibility for whose property is used or misused 
for a particular purpose. I don't think the government 
would ever dream of not paying compensation, under 
those circumstances, or in the alternative, remedying 
the condition by putting the land or the building or the 
hedge back into the position in which it was. 

I would have some difficulty in recommending if a 
person does something himself, which causes the • 
hazard, that he should be compensated for the removal 
of that. I think the House would agree with that, so if it 
would be agreeable to the House , I would recommend 
that it be sent back for further study, with the 
possibility of leaving no compensation for the closing of 
a road under Section 18, which we all understand. But 
where it's a question of entering on land or property, 
that where it's not the fault of the person whose land is 
entered, then compensation will be assessed in ac­
cordance with our standard procedure under the 
Expropriation Ordinance, and if the person disagrees 
with it, then they can take it to court. 

The procedures are set out under that. If that is 
agreeable to the House, I would recommend that to the 
administration. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think that satisfied 
my comment. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Be•·ger: No, I think that satisfied my comment. 

Mr. Chail·man: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. M1·. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was just 
going to say that, yes, tha t 's acceptable to me, and I 
would hope that when they are looking at this Section 
19, that the matter of cause I think has still got to be 
clearly shown, but perhaps maybe when the draft 
comes back we will have another opportunity to go at 
it. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: With due respect to the 
Honourable Member, it's very hard, if a car is turned 
over and has to be hauled back, if the police officer can 
get an ambulance very snappy, and he can get a doctor 

to turn up, but nobody can go in there until they get a 
warrant from the Justice of the Peace who may be 
having his supper up in Takhini. 

I think we have got to, in an emergency situation, 
face the fact that officers must use their common 
sense. 

Hon. M1·. Taylo•·: That's okay. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: It doesn 't matter , Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: We will now proceed with Bill 
Number 9. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor : I imagine you will be reporting 
progress? 

I was going to make a Motion respecting the other 
amendments, but perhaps we will wait until this one 
comes in before we do it. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman , if the Honourable 
Member has another amendment with this same Bill I 
would just as soon he made it now and we could con­
sider it and it would save going back a second time. 

lion. Mr. Taylo•·: I have not the foggiest notion what 
the Honourable Member is talki ng about, Mr. Chair­
man . 

M1·. Chairman: We will now proceed with the clause 
by clause. 

Mrs. Watson? 

M•·s. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have problems 
listening to Mr. Speaker and the Chairman at the same 
time. 

Bill Number 9 

Mr. Chail·man: Is it the wish of Committee that we 
have a witness present during the reading of Bill 
Number 9, "An Ordinance to Amend the Motor 
Vehicles Ordinance"? Mr. Gillespie is available. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I have been 
noticing here during this session that witnesses have 
been here fairly regular . Perhaps when we are 
discussing budget at the spring session, it's a pretty 
good policy, but I don't think witnesses should be 
traipsed in here as a matter of course. 

I think that any member of the Committee, if he can 
convince the Committee that a witness should be here 
to answer questions, fine, but as you are aware, we are 
tying up at least our three Ministers, a great deal of 
their time and administrative duties, and we are just 
dragging other departmental people out from their 
duties , so I would suggest that we go back to the old 
procedure that unless a witness is required and agreed 
upon by the Committee, that we just don't have them 
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here, certainly not as a matter of course. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mt·s. Whyard: I would simply respond to that 
by saying that this is -this Bill is the responsibility of 
Mr. Gillespie, and it would be courteous to have him 
here when it's discussed. 

Mr. McCall: We will accept your judgment on that, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: I think we will proceed with the 
clause by clause reading, and if we run into difficulty, 
we will ask for the witness. 

A Member: Hear, hear. 

Mr. Chairman: One: 
<Reads Clause 1) 

Mr. Chairman: Two: 
<Reads Clause 2) 

Mt·. Chait'man: Three: 
<Reads Clause 3) 

Mr. Chairman: One : 
<Reads Section 50)) 

Mr. Chairman : Two : 
<Reads Section 5(2)) 

Mr. Chairman: Three: 
<Reads Section 5(3)) 

Mr. Chairman: Four : 
<Reads Section 5( 4)) 

Mt·. Chairman: Five: 
<Reads Section 5(5)) 

Mr. Chairman: Six: 
<Reads Section 5(6)) 

Mr. Chairman: Seven : 
<Reads Section 5(7) l 

Mr. Cha it·man: Eight : 
<Reads Section 5(8)) 

Mr. Chairman: 4(1 ): 
<Reads Clause 4(1 )) 

Mr. Chairman: Two: 
<Reads Clause 4(2)) 

Mr. Chairman: Three: 
<Reads Clause 4(3) l 

Mr. Cha irman: Section 5: 
<Reads Clause 5) 

Mr . . Chairman: Six: 
<Reads Clause 6) 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Sorry, as we were going by Sec­
tion 5, Mr. Chairman , I did have a question and it 
refers to the fact that no liveryman's licence is tran­
sferrable, and unless suspended or cancelled, expires 
at the end of the fiscal year. Would this in any way, Mr. 
Chairman, perhaps Mr. Legal Advisor could answer 
this, would this in any way impair a taxi owner from 
selling his business? 

Mr. Legal Advis01·: No, Mr. Chairman. That par­
ticular part is not changed from the old Section to the 
new Section. What is changed is it says it expires at the 
end of the year, that's the only thing. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: M'hmm , okay. 

Mr. Chairman : Seven: 
<Reads Clause 7) 

Mr. Chairman: Eight: 
<Reads Clause 8) 

Mt·. Chait·man: 9(1): 
<Reads Clause 9(1) ) 

Mt·. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, one thing that is 
rather confusing going through the Bill, is the fact that 
these things are referred to subsection 120), should 
th is not be Section 120) of the Ordinance? These are 
not in fact sub-sections are they? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, for a few years 
there has been talk among the various Canadian 
jurisdictions as to how particularly identify what you 
are talking about, and the choice is either using a very 
long formula , paragraph (a) of - sub-paragraph (a) of 
paragraph D of sub-section so and so of Section so and 
so, using the old formula, and it does identify, but it 
makes it very long. 

This is difficult to say, but it identifies the 
paragraph equally well, and a lthough it 's hard to 
identify it when it is being read out, it is easy to identify 
it in writing, so that the Canadian jurisdictions have 
agreed to switch uniformly to this new method of 
writing of the sub-sections, and this is being done now 
across Canada, as a result of the uniformity of law, 
decisons on that. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Okay. 

Mr. Chairman: Two: 
<Reads Clause 9(2)) 

Mr. Chairman: Ten: 
<Reads Clause 10) 

Mr. Chait'man: Eleven: 
C Reads Clause 11 ) 

Mt·. Chait·man: Mr . Lengerke? 
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Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would just like 
to comment that I am really pleased to see that Section 
amended that way. I think now that it enables the 
owner to transfer plates, this is in accord, I think, with 
most of the provinces, or the other way around I 
believe that is the case. 

It is a good step anyway. 

Mr. Chairman: Twelve: 
meads Clause 12l 

Mr. Chairman: Thirteen: 
meads Cla use 13.l 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mt-. Herger: I am having trouble with this Section. I 
am looking in the old Section, there's nothing in there 
-in Dawson , we have a lot of placer miners coming in 
from Alaska, and the Southern United States. They are 
working all summer long with foreign licence plates, 
and there's absolutely nothing in this Ordinance that 
actually forbids them not to do so, because they are 
doing it for pleasure for 90 days. 

Whatever happened if you have an accident because 
they are travelling on mining roads that are in bad 
shape and so on, nobody knows if they have insurance 
on the thing. I think we should have something in this 
Ordinance to specify if they are working, it should be 
changed in that. It's not for pleasure any longer. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: I would just like to say, Mr. Chairma n, 
I thoroughly agree with that because that 's been my 
experience in Dawson also. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I'm sorry, I wasn' t listening to· 
the question because I found a different typing error in 
Section 12, sub-section (1) part. The grammar is in­
correct unless you make motor vehicles plural, semi­
trailers or trailers , otherwise it is incorrect. So it's a 
typing error. It wasn't transferred across correc­
tly from the old section. But I'm not sure what the new 
question was. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Well, as I said, what I would like to see 
in there is a specific definition of pleasure and working 
in the Territory, for vehicles registered outside the 
Territory, especially in foreign countries, because 
there is absolutely nothing in there that states that 
people working, for instance, their own placer ground 
are not here for pleasure or anything like this. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: We can consider the matter, 
Mr. Chairman. It's a very blurred definition with some 
people, depending whether they like their work, I 
guess, but we will consider the matter and see if we can 
deal with it appropriately. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, the concern of the 

Honourable Member from Klondike is really not the 
pleasure or the working aspect of it, but did you not 
mention that you are concerned about the insurance, 
and I know the Honourable Member from Kluane 
raised this the other day and made a very specific point 
of it. 

Could there be no way that we could insert in this 
that there would have to be proof of insurance? I don't 
think the case of having them operate on 90 days on 
theirown licences, I lhink It's jusl a matter of concern 
that they are not covered adequately under an in­
surance policy. 

Mr. Legal Advisor : Mr . Chairman, as the law is en­
forced at present, and I haven 't heard that there are 
any difficulties in relation to it, once a person comes to 
work here they have to take out their correct papers. 
When they are tourists, they get a period of grace. 

Mr. Lengerke: Oltay, so then--

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that's not being self 
employed, they are mining. 

Mr. Legal Advisor : I will raise the question. in view 
of the debate, with the Registrar and see does he think 
its necessary to 'specifically deal with it in this or a 
similar section. 

Mr. Lengerke: Okay. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, the point I was 
going to raise, and I think Mr. Legal Advisor, if you will 
assist on this one, I think the policy when someone 
from the Yukon leaves and goes to another jurisdic­
tion, their plates are valid for a least 90 days, whether 
they are working or touring. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Whatever is done in B.C., we 
presently db that, we have a reciprocal arrangement 
back and forth and we observe them, but I couldn 't tell 
offhand precisely without r unning through the current 
Ordinance to see what we have for regula tions. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: I have been in B.C. , I had my own ex­
perience there. If you are in B.C., you start working 
there, you have to change licence pla tes right now. The 
thing is, the Honourable Member from Kluane men- · 
tioned, tha t there's nothing stated in there about self 
employment. 

I mean, it's pretty hard to prove whether a person is 
here on pleasure or is working. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Cha irman. I am very con­
cerned about the insurance because of the fact that I 
am quite sure I am right in this, in the States and many 
places they drive through here, they don 't have in-
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surance, and this has been known -- I know of accidents 
have happened myself on the road, and we have been 
involved -- not in the accident, involved in recovery and 
so forth on the highway, and we find that these people 
do not really have insurance, not as we have it. 

Now, I feel that any time anybody goes to work in 
this Territory, he certainly should be obliged at that 
time, if he's going to drive his car, to have the same in­
surance as we have one way or the other. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Chairman, you have to have 
some way of policing that, and I think what you are 
talking about is in reference to the American tourist 
coming up, and a lot of them have insurance, but it 
does not apply to the Alaska Highway, in small print. A 
lot of your tourists are not aware of this to begin with, 
and I think it's up to us, hopefully in the future, to set up 
some way of monitoring this at the borders , and if they 
don't have insurance, that they should either be sent 
back or else have to purchase 30 day insurance, or 
however that works. 

But this is the problem, what you are expressing 
there. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. As the Whitehor­
se Porter Creek representative says, the Honourable, 
yes, this is an issue too, but I am not speaking actually 
of tourists as the insurance goes. 

I am speaking of the person that comes over here 
and he is here a couple of months and he gets a job and 
he works here, and he continues to use his car. Now, he 
does have to licence it under our jurisdiction, and he 
gets insurance that way. Am I right on that? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, in order to register , Mr. 
Chairman, he must have a licence. 

Mr. Fleming: So therefore he would be insured if he 
is working in this country, that's my concern. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, there could be 
somewhat of a compromise here where I believe it 
could be changed from not exceeding 90 days to not ex­
ceeding 30 days. 

I think there are a lot of jobs in the Yukon that 
people come up from, not just even from foreign coun­
tries but certainly from the provinces, and they spend 
two or three months working in for instance Dawson, 
without having to get anqther licence. So I would like to 
see consideration of changing the 90 days to 30. I don 't 
think very many people tour the Yukon for three mon-
b . - -

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the debate is 
centering around· ttie wrong point, it appears to me, 
with respect. 

We are talking about registration here. What we 
should be talking about is insurance, where we can en­
force insurance. As far as the insurance position in 
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Canada is concerned, we are one of the few jurisdic­
tions which have compulsory insurance as a matter of 
law. In other jurisdictions, they make different 
arrangement, and a person who is not insured, has to 
make arrangements to pay 20 or 25 or 30 or $40.00, with 
his registration in the Motor Vehicle Registration 
Branch of the province, to cover the loss which may 
be attributed to the Unsatisfied Judgment Fund. 

We have ·chosen the reverse situation to ¥>rce 
compulsory insurance, and some three years agb we 
raised the limit which was imposed on a driver fro m 
$20,000.00 to $50,000.00 compulsory insurance. This is 
enforced, and quite meticulously enforced in relation 
to cars which are running around the Territory, and 
it's difficult enforcement - a thing to enforce in 
relation to cars of tourists who are coming through, 
and this is a separate question as to whether it should 
or could or will be costly to enforce. It's quite a di f­
ferent question. 

But so far as people who come to work here is 
concerned, the police and enforcement officers 
generally, do enforce the law, that anyone who com es 
to work here, then should take out insurance. They 
may not be aware of cases, and they may not spread 
their nets wide enough, but they do attempt to enforce 
the law, but some grace is given to the person who 
comes here in order to allow him tim e in order to 
register . 

But the expression here is " touring for pleasure", 
and with respect, in certa in cases, 30 days may not be 
enough. If you are talking about a genuine tourist, then 
I don't think we should worry. If we are talking about a 
person who is trying to chea t the law, I think perhaps 
the Section should be tougher. 

But in any event if the House would pass on from 
this then perhaps the Registrar of the Motor Vehicle 
can produce hard information to what the facts are or 
answer any questions and we could go ahead from this 
and deal with it on the basis of insurance rather than 
registration . 

Mr. Chai•·man: Mr. Berger. 

Mr. Rerge•·: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I just would 
like to make one comment that the Legal Advisor said, 
I think both things are tied in together in t~e Territory, 
without insurance you can't register your vehicle, and 
I think that this is the safeguard that we are looking 
for, that the people who are coming into the Territory, 
like tourists or people working here, that they have to 
register thei r vehicle a t the point of entry or any place. 
I would even go so far as to issue a courtesy licence 
plate as long as the people know in the Territory that 
those vehicles are insured. I think this could be quite 
easily done on the weigh scales or something like this 
without creating more Administration or something. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard. 

Ms. Milla•·d: Mr. Chairman this might be a good 
time for Mr. Gillespie to come as a witness so he can 
add his expertise. 

Hon. Mr. Taylo•· : I was sim ply going to say if the 
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Administration are going to consider this why don 't we 
leave it in their hands and see what they come up with 
and carry on with the Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: In reference to what Mr. Berger is 
saying, and I raised the question here last session that 
at the same time that we're- it's my feeling anyway, 
at the same time that we're enforcing the insurance on 
the people coming through the Territory, at the same 
time I think we should have them buy a campside 
sticker for something in the neighbourhood of $5.00. I 
think it would increase our revenue to no end. 

M1·. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

lion. M1·s. Whyard: Mr. Chairman just before you 
pass on from this section this is where I specifically 
brought the subject up in an earlier discussion when we 
were on the Civil Legal Aid Bill. Because there is a loop 
hole there which needs to be filled, and that is the in­
surance of visiting vehicles, and whatever means we 
lake it should be done immediately so that this coming 
season there will be some kind of enforcement 
possible. 

Mr. Chairman: We will carry on with Section 14. 

(Reads Clause 14 ) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Mr,. ~hairman this is on the un­
derstandi'ng that British Columbia insurance for i!l· 
stance IS acceptable is this not correct. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It is for the Registrar to say. He 
may on application, if he is satisfied that he is 
adequately covered he can deal with it in that matter. 
It would apply to morethan B.C. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: I was just trying to make a point is 
that we're not cornermg 'these people as we do with the 
many Yukon residents into buying insurance from 
Yukon firm s. That if they have, if they are registered 
say with B.C. insurance scheme and the vehicle is in 
fact, has the insurance coverage required by law, not 
withstanding where he got 1t lie can· get' the perm1t. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Or a visitor this would, it 
wouldn't be the case for every body but it would be the 
case for the visitor. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman this is a problem in my 
constituency, quite a great problem and I don 't where 
the decision. I'm not th.at !'am1ffar with, 1 must admit 
the Motor Vehicles Ordinance and the req.uirements 
under it and the insurance structure, but, I think the 
deficiency in this section is the owner is adequately 
covered by a policy of Motor Vehicle Liability. We have 
many large trucks going from Alaska from the lower 48 
through the Alaska Highway in~o Alaska, and we have 
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had several instances of accidents. where the faul t of 
accident hasn 't really been determined, but they are 
supposed to have insurance they are let go into Alaska 
and forget that's the last that the people who have 
suffered the accident, Canadian citizens residing along 
there, they haven 't been able to collect anything. Now 
it's just sort of in limbo. Now I don't know where the 
deficiency is, but it 's a problem and it's happening 
oftener and oftener. 

M1·. Legal Advisor: I wasn't aware Mr. Chairman 
that there was a problem but if the Honourable would 
bring to the attention of the ·Government cases which 
have arisen, I only know of one, with a possible second, 
but if there are others, they should be dealt with. 
Basically the situation in that kind of an instance is to 
bring pressure against the insurance company 
wherever it is or the insurance jurispiction to have the 
insurance company which refuses to deal on behalf of 
its client struck from the register in California, Oregon 
or wherever it happens to be. 

ML Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 

Mr. Fleming: Yes Mr. Chairman, I agree with the 
Legal Advisor but I see our Honourable Members 
problem too because I say and I may be wrong because 
I'm not a Legal Beagle, I don't know all these things. 
When they come from the States, there are many 
states that do not have insurance, so if they are let go 
through the country without insurance, and of course 
if they kill somebody or knock somebody over or 
somethJhg happens, fhc prol:ilem arises as to who is to 
pay for it, and then that's fine for a day or two but as 
she explained they leave the country and then the 

problem arises how do you ever get paid for it. This is I 
think a fact. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman this is, what this 
section is saying is that the persons transporting goods 
into, out of, or through the Territory must have 
adequate insurance. So this i~ a helpful section rather 
than averse, with respect Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chail·man: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman the point we're making 
is that we can't enforce this. Once something happens. 
you know, there is no point··· it 's fine having it in here, 
but can we enforce it on the insurance companies or the 
truckers that are travelling through here. Some of 
them go out of business by the time we get around to 
going after them. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman in this section­
this is an enforcible section because the Registrar 
must be satisfied they have adequate insurance. 
Adequate insurance would include insurance with a 
known company which would be responsible for the 
acts of its clients. Action lies against, not only the 
person who owns the truck which is involved in the 
accident , but against the insurance company, and 
would be enforcible in the case of an acCident occuring 
under this particular section, I would apprehend. Now 
the smaller cars are a different situation , but when 
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we're dealing with the ones bringing in loads I don 't 
think we have any problems provided the person has a 
good case and takes it to the law. There is some dif­
ficulty in getting people to respond because the action 
occurs in the Territory, but, if a lawyer would read his 
law he would find that a parallel action would arise 
also, in California or the home base of the particular 
trucking company. He has a choice of fora, e ither in 
this Territory or there, depending on where the 
greatest connection with the event occurs and he can 
choose. But few lawyers apparently are aware of this. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

lion. Mt·s. Whvard: Just to clarify a little further 
on this point. section 14 clearly spells out that any of· 
these people coming through from the States on their 
way through to Alaska for example, transporting goods 
through the Territory, without loading or discharging, 
can't have a permit until the Registrar is satisfied that 
the owner is adequately covered by a policy of Motor 
Vehicle Liability Insurance in respect to those 
vehicles. Now, I think the problem we have here is how 
you enforce this section. Now I've always understood 
.that the people who came through this Territory on 
long hauls and had the perm it to do so. had anin­
dication on their licence which any law enforcement 
office r could immediately spot. Is this not so, is there 
not a P .S~ v: or wliatever interstate licence which is 
easily recognized by any officer of the law and if he 
does not see it he has authority to stop that vehicle and 
say where is your permit to travel through the Yukon 
Territory because if he has that permit he is insured. 

Mt·. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman and of 
course he's got to go through a check point if he's on a 
through trip. 

l\1r. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: The Honourable Minister raised a 
good point there, but. I know that in talking to many of 
the truckers in the Yukon this does seem to be a 
problem and it seems to be at the level right here with 
the Registrar. Maybe he isn't really gettin gproof 
positive that they do have proper coverage. I think this 
is a bit of the situation because, I'm giving you an 
example of myself, I went in to buy a licence, they 
never asked me if I had any insurance, they handed me 
a licence. I went in and I bought a dealers plate, they 
never asked me if I had a licence as a dealer or 
anything else.· It could have been 'Joe Blow walking in 
off of the street, now if that 's the kind of way they 
monitor this, then I would see where there would be 
some problems and this is the area that I'm concerned 
with. Is that, fine, the proof is satisfactory to the 
Commissioner, it's probably there but are we really 
getting that proof positive that that fellow has 
coverage and that that coverage is the type that is 
going to. be extended as he's travelling through. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman I think that it 
would be most helpful to tJave the Registrar here to 
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Mr. Chairman: I think we'll probably declare 
recess until 1:30 at which time we'll continue with the 
Medical Ordinance and return to this Ordinance at a 
tater time. We don't have much time to call him now. 
So I will declare a recess now until 1:30. 

Mr. Chairman: I now call the Committee to order. 

Bill Number 8 

This afternoon we plan to discuss Bill ~urn ber 8, 
"An Ordinance to Amend the Medical Profession 
Ordinance". We have at the behest of the Minister of 
Health and Welfare, as witnesses fron1 the Yukon 
Medical Association , Dr. Mason-Brown. Dr. Asfeldt, 
and Dr. Tanner, and Mr. Tommy Duncon, 
Administrator of the Yukon Health Care and Hospital 
Plan. 

I would like to turn the Chai r over to Mr. McCall at 
this time. 

<Mr. McCall takes Chair) 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr . Chairman. 
Before we go any further, is it the wish of this 

Committee that we call the witnesses in at this time? 

Some Member·s: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: We will have a short recess while 
the witnesses are being called in, or brought in. 

Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I will call this Committee to Order. 
Before we go into section by section reading, I 

would like for the witnesses, if they may, after 
welcoming them to the Legislative Assembly, if they 
would identify themselves from left to right, so our 
recorder will know who they are. 

Mr. Duncan: Tommy Duncan. 

Mr·. Chairman: Mr. Duncan. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: I'm Dr. Mason-Brown. 

Dr. Tanner: Aubrey Tanner. 

Dr. Asfeldt: Jules Asfeldt. 

Mt·. Chairman: Okay, we will go into se .. tion by 
section reading of Bill Number 8. I will read S~ction 1: 
Section 1, sub(l ): 
c Reads Section 1 c 1)) 

Mr. Chairman: Sub (2): 
<Reads Section IC2) l 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 

Some Members : Clear . 
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Mr. Cha h·m an: Section 2: 
(Reads Section 2) 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have a couple of 
questions, and the first one is Section 4(1) (a) where it 
says, "was entitled by law". My question is , what law? 
Is it a Federa l Medical Act that we are referring to? 

M•·. Legal Advism·: No, Mr. Chairman. In the 
original Ac t , we are talking about the previous t imes 
tha t this was amended, and that was the 22nd of 
November, 1954. We are bringing that date up-to-date , 
so as to grandfather in, any person who by our law, is 
legally entitled to practice medicine in the Territory at 
the moment. 

Mr. Chairman : Dr. Hibberd? 

Mr. Hibberd : Mr. Chairman, I think there has been 
some concern expressed, first of all I think that the 
Yukon Medica l Association has voiced their s trong 
approval of this Ordinance, in that it does - they are 
most concerned with high standards of medical 
pr actice being. carried on in the Territory, and with 
reference to that, r think they m ight have some dif­
ficulty , and I would like to hear what they have to say, 
regarding the phrases here of an "approved medica l 
school" or an "approved hospital". 

Mr. Chairman: You would like the witnesses to 
answer? 

Mr. llibbc•·d: Yes, please. 

Mr. Chain nan: Do any of you gentlemen care to 
start off? 

Dr. Mason-B•·own: Mr. Chairman, as the 
Honourable Member has said -

M•-. Chah·man: Excuse me, you may sit down. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: As the Honourable Member has 
said, the Yukon Medical Association is concerned wi th 
the maintenance of high standards of medical practice 
in the Terri tory, and with the preservation and con­
tinuance of that custom. 

The object of this, is of course, the protection of the 
public at large, and in tha t connection I should say that 
the Yukon Medical Associa tion is affiliated with the 
British Columbia Medical Association and would wish 
to continue that a ffilia tion . So after this Ordinance to 
amend the Medical Professional Ordinance, the word 
"approved university or school of medic ine" 
frequently recurs. What we would like to see is that this 
should read "approved by the B.C. College of 
Physicians and Surgeons". 

We do not have a College in this Territory. The B.C. 
College of Physicians and surgeons have the 
knowledge and expertise to evaluate schools 
throughout the country and maintain such a list, and 
we would like, so far as our development is at present 

stands, to follow the B.C. practice. 
One should add that these lists of schools differ from 

province to province, and B.C. we think, has ~ high 
standard. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Taylor ? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask . 
what objection could be found in asking, or in putting 
into the Ordinance a provision which would provide for 
any Canadian College of Physicians and Surgeons? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: Because standards tend to vary 
from province to province, that's one answer. A second 
answer is because we have been affiliated with the B.C. 
College and propose to continue that affiliation. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. llibbe•·d: I might add , Mr. Chairman, that the 
B.C. College has indicated its willingness to carry out 
these duties for the Yukon Medical Association. 

M1·. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Whyard? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: We certainly have no objection 
to spelling out what we mean by approved. I'm just 
wondering if we could have the benefit of the witnesses' 
assistance. Would you visualize that we would simply 
insert a phrase in one of these Sections saying "in an 
approved hospital as lis ted by the B.C. Council of", et 
cetera, etcetera , or should a list of those hospita ls be 
appended in regulations to this Ordinance, so that if 
someone is looking to see whether an applicant is 
ac tually a graduate of an approved institution, he 
would not have to then pursue the B.C. list, it would be 
available her e. Is this what you have in mind? 

Mr. Chairman: Dr. Mason-Brown ? 

Dr. Mason-B•·own: I th ink what we should like to see 
is wherever the word "approved" is mentioned , that 
the phrase "approved by the B.C. College of 
Physicians and Surgeons" is added, rather than the 
maintenance of a list which may tend to vary from 
year to year . 

Hon. M•·s. Whya•·d: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chail-man: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: I have another question to ask on that 
sam e Section (b). Are these all the requirements - is it 
compulsory to have 1, 2 and 3, and 4 is an alternative to 
1, 2 and 3, and so is 5? May I have a clarification of 
that? 

M1·. Chairman : Mr . Legal Advisor, would you like to 
answer that point? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I wasn't listening to the 
question? What was the question? 

Mrs. Watson: The question was, is it a requirement 
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to have all of I, 2 and 3 with an either-M for 4 and 5? 
There 's only one or, and I would like verification of 
that, between 4 and 5. 

Mr. ChaiJ·man : Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Lrgal Advisor : Mr. Chairman, when you put in 
" or" in a series, the old fashioned way was to put 1 or 2 
or 3 or 4, the modern way is to put in "or" in the -
be tween the penul timate and the ultimate paragraph. 
so you only put it in once, but it implies that it is there 
be tween each pa ragraph. 

Mr. Chairman: Is that satisfactory, Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman. From that very 
concise and clear explanation, am I to gather then that 
either one of those requi rements are sufficient? 

Mr. Legal Advisor : Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr . Chairman, then mav I ask the 
witnesses what is the difference between 1 and 2 and 3? 

M•·- Chairman: Dr . Brown, do you wish to clarify 
that point? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: Perhaps Dr. -

Dr. Tanne r: Perhaps I could answer this particular 
question . The parts 1 and 2, Sections 1 and 2 should be 
"and" in my opinion. This is a present requirement as 
we understand it. The 3 does not apply to all registrants 
in the Te rritory, this is a specialist qualification only, 
and 4 should be an "or", so there is some confusion. I 
am glad to hear the question was raised. It was not 
clear in my mind exactly what this Section meant, so I 
would interpret it , my understanding at present is that 
there should be an "and" between Sections 1 and 2 and 
"or" between 2 and 3, and then "or" between 3 and 4. 

Mr. Chairman: Will you make a note of that. Mr. 
Legal Advisor, of sub<b>? 

Mr. Legal Advisor : Perhaps the witness might care 
to clear up the fact that it has been raised by a former 
Chief Medical Officer out of the Territory who ran 
through this, who said that one of these bodies does not 
in fact qualify people to practice. It doesn't do this, and 
he asked 

Dr. Mason-Brown : Actually. sub-paragraph (3). 
such a certificate is not obtainable without the 
possession of both < 1) and < 2 >. 

Mr. Chairman: Well, Dr. Brown, I must caution you 
on debating with the Legal Advisor. 

Yes, Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Am I led to believe then that 1 and 2 
could really then become 1? Would that be correct. Dr. 
Tanner ? 

D•·. Tanner : That's my understanding. 
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l\k Lengerke: Right. and then point 3 would be 
taken out completely? 

1\l r . Chairman: Are we of the opinion then that sub 
< 3 > of < b > is. the language thereof is okay as to the 
meaning? I think this is what l\1r. Lengerke is wishing 
to have clarified. 

1\lr. Lengerkl': Right. 

lion. M•·s. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. - 'as I un­
derstand it, what we are saying is that the person must 
be a graduate in medicine from, and after they have 
graduated from their university, then they become a 
Licentiatr of thr 1\ledical Council after thry write those 
exams, nght 

But they could also, having had years and years of 
experience and done their specials and become a 
specialist and a consultant. they could then also decide 
to come to the Yukon as a consultant specialist. and 
they would then be covered under <3>. right? 

Mr. Chairman: I would think so. yes. 

Was that your understanding, gentlemen? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Oh yes, but they don't have to be 
both. 

Dr. Tanner: The only comment is that up to this 
time, any specialist registered in the Territory has a lso 
met the requirements of items < 1 l and < 2). 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any futher questions on this 
before I move on? Is it clear? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, do I gather then that 
some of this is going to be rewritten and clarified? 

Mr. Chairman: We have asked the Legal Advisor to 
take a note of that. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: This has been prepared from a 
document which was supplied, so far as I know 
originally, from the medical people here, so we in­
ter preted it, and did whatever it was. 

This is the first time I know the meaning of it. 

Mr. Hibberd: I might add, Mr. Chairman, that the 
deletions that we are now trying to get back in, were in 
the original submission. 

Dr. Tanner: And were not deleted by the members 
of the Medical Profession. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, in sub-section (1) 
of Section 2, the phrase "after consultation with the 
Yukon Medical Association" is used at the end of that 
sub-section. Could I just have some sort of clarification 
just what that means? 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: In this day and age, I think it 
usually means a telephone call between the ap­
propriate officer of the Territory, and the appropriate 
officer of the Medical Association, or if necessary, then 
physical consultation. Usually I think it's a telephone 
call and a cheque. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman; with all due 
respect, I'm asking what type of consultation is 
required here. Does first the Yukon Medical 
Association have to approve this doctor who is coming 
in, or what are we consulting about? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, consultation is a 
grey word, and it was intended to be a grey word to 
retain its greyness to be flexible. I would just as soon 
not define what a consultation is. 

Mr. Chairman: Supplementary, Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would just 
as soon that the Legal Advisor did define or take it out 
of here, because as I say, if we can't understand it, cer­
tainly nobody else will, and I think if we are writing 
legislation and going to approve legislation, we should 
understand it. If we cannot understand it, it should not 
be on legislation. 

So I would ask again if Mr. Legal Advisor or a mem­
ber of the government could explain to me, what type 
of consultations are sought here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Telephone consultations, by let­
ter, by personal meeting, by attendance at a meeting 
of the Y.M.A. with a list, or by an officer of the Y.M.A. 
attending at the office of one of the officials, or other. 
All of these things would be covered by the word "con­
sultation", and this is what is intended. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: For what purpose? That's what 
I'm asking, I still haven't got my question answered. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, do you wish to--

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, one more question to 
maybe confuse this a little bit more. 

(b) (1), the witnesses have asked that "approved by 
the B.C. College of Physicians and Surgeons" be in­
serted, however, am I to understand that a person can 
qualify for two without being a graduate from an in­
stitution that does not necessarily have to be approved 
by the B.C. College of Physicians and Surgeons? 

Mr. Chairman: Would one of the witnesses like to 
clarify Mrs. Watson's --

Dr. Tanner: Are you referring to 4 (b), number 2? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, 4 (b) (1), "is a graduate in 
medicine from an approved university" , approved by 
the B.C. College of Physicians and Surgeons. 

Now, is a Licentiate -- the pronunciation -- of the 
Medical College of Canada, you can be a graduate of a 
school of medicine that is not necessarily approved by 
the B.C. College of Physicians and Surgeons and still 
qualify for 2, am I not correct? 

Dr. Asfeldt: It is possible, yes, it's possible. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: It is 'J'ny understanding that 
there are varients between the Territories in regard to 
what schools are approved , and as I understand it, 
it's entirely possible through, for instance, the Provin­
ce of Newfoundland, to get an enabling certificate to sit 
the Lincetiate exam of the Medical Council of Canada, 
and through that route, obtain the L.M.C.C. 
examination. 

This might not, for this particular person, be 
possible by going through B.C. So the list of approved 
schools varies from province to province. 

Mrs. Watson : But you can still qualify for two? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, I don't want you to get 
into a debate with the witnesses, please. 

Mrs. Watson: I'm sorry. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I think perhaps 
maybe at this point, it might be wise to -- it would be, 
I'm sure , of great assistance to our recording 
secretary if everyone could be called from the Chair 
and no inner speaking. I know it must be difficult. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Taylor, but some of 
us don't give each other an opportunity to pronounce 
their names before they start speaking. 

Mrs. Watson, do you wish to go further int.o--

Mrs. Watson: Not necessarily, Mr. Chairman, other 
than the fact that there is a need for some clarification 
in this section , a very great need . 

Mr. Chairman: If it is in order, I would like to ad­
vise the Legal Advisor if he would take note of this 
language until we have completed the reading of the 
Bill. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, 

Mr. Chairman: In case it goes back for further 
review. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I am not taking it that the House 
has made any decision on the qualifications, but what 
the House is really saying is that the witnesses, 
perhaps and some officer of the government should get 
together and make it crystal clear, so that when it 
comes back, there will be no hassling about it, and it 
will be a satisfactory section. 
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Mr. Chairman: I think, Mr. Legal Advisor, we will 
cross that bridge when we come to it. Yes, Mr. Hib­
berd? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, I think it could be 
clarified very simply. As was suggested, a person who 
is a graduate in medicine from an approved uni-versity 
or school of medicine, and is a Licentiate of the 
Medical Council of Canada, or is an Certificate or a 
Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians and 
Surgeons of Canada, or is a graduate in medicine-from 
an approved school or university or medical school. In 
other words, just that simple, or and or. That's all that 
is required. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I think the point 
at issue here is whether or not there could be somebody 
who was a Licentiate, who was not on the approved 
B.C. list, and I think that's a pretty rare possibility, 
isn't it? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: It's possible, but rare. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: What we need is to examine the 
B.C. list and check, I suppose. I don't know. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry to be getting 
up so often, but I see that there is a requirement for a 
graduate to qualify under number (2), but there is no 
requirement for a gr aduate from (4) to qualify under 
number (2), or from (5) to qualify under number (2). 

Mr. Chairman : I stand to be corrected on this point, 
Mrs. Watson, but I believe it was suggested by one of 
the members that (1) and (2) be considered together , 
as far as language, and (3) would be a separate item as 
far as language. 

Now, I don 't want to get into an area· of confusion on 
this point. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, let's get into the 
area of confusion now, rather than after the Bill is 
passed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Mr. Hibberd : Mr. Chairman, I think it is very 
clear , if you follow those directions. If you read 
num ber< 4) it s tates, he is a graduate in medicine from 
an approved university , he has a lso completed twelve 
months of satisfactory internship in an approved 
hospital , so he has those qualifications. 

The same applies in 5. 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Chairman: 

Mr~ Chairman : Mr . Lang? 

linn. i\lt·. Lang: In Number (4 l . does that 

Page 108 

automatically give you the qualification of a Licentiate 
of the Medical Council of Canada? 

Mt·. Chaimtan: Do any of the witnesses wish to 
clarify the point Mr. Lang has brought up? 

Dr. Brown. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: Mr. Chairman, the word "ap­
proved" appears in sub-section Civ ), and it appears 
again in sub-section <v ). We are requesting that in 
those two cases and in all other similar cases, the 
words "approved by the B.C. College of Physicians and 
Surgeons" be added. Therefore, somebody wishing to 
practice under (iv) or (v) would be covered insofar as 
item ( 1) is concerned. 

We would require that he fulfill items (1 ) and (2), 

therefore he would be covered. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, if the section is 
being redrafted, I wouldn't like the House to think that 
automatically the legislation would produce approved 
by a body over which this House has no control. It 
might be that another formula might be sought, so that 
the definition of approved could be approved by the 
Commissioner after consultation with the B.C. College 
of Physicians and Surgeons, rather than give by 
delegation, the right to a body over which we have no 
control whatsoever, the right to make legislation under 
this House. 

But that's a th ing that can be thought of when the 
section is being rewritten. 

Mt·. Chairman : Thank you, Mr. Legal Advisor. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: May I just, for clarification, Mr. 
Chairman? 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Dr. Brown. 

Dr. Mason-Brown: I would ask that the word "or" 
be inserted between paras (iii) and (iv) and the word 
"and" between paras <i) and Cii ). 

Mr. Chairman: Section 2: 
<Reads Sub-Section ( 2 )) 

Mt·. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman , the terminology in 
sub-(a) is that he must hold certificates of good stan­
ding from every place in which he has practiced 
medicine or surgery . Does this mean he has to have a 
clean bill of health when he leaves a jurisdiction, or 
does it mean he must keep current certificates in 
places in which he does not practice? 

Mr. Chainnan: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. LI'J!al 1\clvisor: It mran s lhE' la t l<>r . Mr. 
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Chairman. He must keep- he must be able to produce 
a certificate as required from any place in which he 
has previously practiced medicine. 

Mr. Chairman: Do any of the witnesses wish to 
clarify any of this? 

Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mt·. Chairman: Three: 
(Reads Section 3) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, again we are brought 
to the point where we have an approved university or 
school of medicine, and I would suggest that again with 
the correct terminology, that we refer to the B.C. 
College of Physicians and Surgeons. That's in sub· 
section ( 1 l. 

In sub-section ( 4), the way this is worded, the 
temporary permit may be renewed, and - for 12 
months, and at the end of 12 months, it may be renewed 
for a further 12 months. This could go on ad infinitum. I 
don't think that this is a very wise practice, and I think 
it would be wiser if the limits of this temporary permit 
were to a maximum of two years. 

Mr. Chait·man: You're suggesting in your ex­
pression, Mr. Hibberd, you are saying that there is a 
floating situation here as far as the licence? Is this 
what you are saying? 

Dr. llibberd: Sorry, I didn't hear you? 

Mr. Chairman: Are you saying there is a floating 
situation as far as the licensing? 

Dt·. Hibberd: Yes. 

Mt·. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor, do you wish to 
answer this? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: There doesn't appear to be a 
maximum here, but I presume that year by year, it 
would get harder to renew a temporary permit. It 
could happen. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. Hibbet·d: Mr. Chairman, I would like to hear 
from the witnesses regarding this. 

Mr. Chait·man: Yes, can you hold the question for a 
second? 

Dt·. Tanner: My comment would be, Mr. Chairman, 
that provision is made for registration, once the 
practitioner has met the requirements of the earlier 
Sections, chiefly by obtaining his Licentiate from the 
Medical Council of Canada, and the two years would be 
more than adequate for a doctor to sit these 
examinations and qualify under this section. 

Mt·. Chairman: Supplementary, Mr. Hibberd? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Hold your horses, Mrs. Whyard. Is 
that okay? 

Dr. Hibberd: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that 's exactly 
what I had in mind. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: My question has been answered, 
lli~k~u. o 

Mr. Chairman: Okay. Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mt·s. Whyard: I just wanted to ask, Mr. 
Chairman, if our friends could suggest any cir­
cumstances they might think of, where a practicing 
physician would want to extend the renewal for more 
than one year? Would there be a case where someone 
came in as a locum, and someone was ill or away, 
surely it would never extend beyond that period. 

Mr. Chairman: Dr. Brown, yes, do you wish to 
clarify this? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: If I might be frivolous, he might 
be stupid and fail his L.M.C .C. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: But he would then - Mr. 
Chairman, he would then have an opportunity to 
rewrite the exam the following year? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don't understand 
this Section at all, and I would like a little clarification , 
because in (1) we say "who is a graduate in medicine 
from an approved university or school of medicine and 
who com plies with the provisions of sub-section 4 ( 3) ". 
What is sub-section 4(3)? 

Mr. Chairman: Do any of the witnesses wish to 
clarify the point that Mrs. Watson has brought up? Mr. 
Legal Advisor? I 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I don't know, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, I just wanted to confirm really 
what I think the Member from South Centre is trying to 
say, and that he just feels he would like to put a 
restriction on the fact that a doctor could practice 
under a permit year after year after year. I think he 
would like to get him to the point where he could be 
licensed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, that is exactly the 
point. If someone continues to fail the L.M.C.C. exams 
and continue to practice medicine in the Yukon 
Territory without having to get any permanent 
registration. He could carry on a permit renewable 
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every twelve months. We don't think that is a good 
enough standard. If he flunks his L.M.C.C. he should 
not be allowed to practice in the Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? Gentlemen , would you 
kindly refrain your discussion please? 

Yes, Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman I take it that the 
administration in the form of Mr. Legal Advisor will be 
looking at this section in order to perhaps, provide the 
safeguards, ot the additional safeguards that are:-

Ma·. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, this will be 
considered and we would find out whether that means 
subsection 4 (3) means section 3 subsection 3, or 
subsection 4 subse.ction paragraph 3. We don't know 
the origin of these notations, what they have to comply 
with, we have to find out. 

M ... Chairman: Mrs. Watson you had a question? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, what would be the 
provision? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Ma·. Legal Advisor: What I think is meant, is sub­
section 3 of that particular section that he must make 
an effort to get his full qualifications if he is going to 
hold a temporary permit. I am not sure and therefore I 
couldn 't give a certain answer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, a supplementary? 

Mrs. Watson: That is just on the initial issuing of the. 
certificate. I think there is some work required on that 
section. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I just heard the 
witnesses commenting and maybe I could ask Dr. 
Mason-Brown, he expressed, I heard, a little concern 
about a section there, you were commenting that your 
didn't think something was valid. Could we have your 
comments? 

Mr. Chairman: Dr. Brown? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: My comment, this is not meant 
for general consumption, was to the effect, Mr. 
Chairman, that I don't think Mrs. Watson's question 
has been answered and I also do not understand what 
this phrase means, "provisions of sub-section 4 {3 ). 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor, would you give 
us some clarification on this point in question, or take 
note? 

Mr. Legal Advisoa·: If the House will recall, when I 
was asked the question the first time I told the House I 
didn't know the answer. Since then each person has 
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been after· me to guess at the answer. Each of the 
people here are just as good at guessing as I am. 

Mr. Chairman: I think the question is on 
everybody's mind, Mr. Legal Advisor , is that why the 
language in the first place if you do not understand 
yourself? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I understand the 
language, it is the reference is an inaccurate 
reference. I don't know how the inaccurate reference 
came in until we get an original draft to find out what 
typist 's error crept into the reference. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. 
Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, doesn't section 4 refer to 
the original section 4 which is the qualifications which 
you have repealed and given under that new list, here. 
So he must go after making his - all effort to 
registration , he does so and then he goes back and 
qualifies as an L.M.C.C. Two of section 4 on the first 
page. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I would say that is a good guess, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger, do you wish to project a 
question? 

Mr. Berger: All I was trying to do was to help Mr. 
Legal Advisor, like in the old ordinance there is no such 
a thing as 4(3), and I think this is why Mr. Legal 
Advisor says he doesn't know. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, can we pass on, 
I think we have had enough fun with that one. 

Mr. Chairman: I think we should give the 
satisfaction of all members of this Committee before 
we pass on . 

Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: 4: 
<Reads Clause 4) 

Ma·. Chairman: Any questions? Yes, Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman , I think to be consistent 
with these (4) and (5) , I think there is a discrepancy 
here, and I would like to hear what the witnesses have 
to say. 

Mr. Ch;~irman: Do any of you gentlemenwlsh to-

Dr. Mason-Brown: Where were we again, Mr. 
Chairman? I'm sorry. 
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Mr. Chairman: We were reading four , sub-section 
(4) and (5). 

Dr. Mason-Brown: The Y.M.A. would like to see 
added, t ha t the Commissioner may, in consultation 
with the Yukon Medical Association, refuse to restore 
to the register , a ny name or entry so removed. 

Mr. Chairman: You're suggesting -

Dr. Mason-Brown: The Commissioner being a lay 
person, and in the provinces this duty would inevitably 
fall upon somebody who is medically qualified. 

Mr. Chairman: You are suggesting then an 
amendment to the sub-(5) which is proposed? 

D1·. Mason-Brown: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Dr. llibberd: Mr. Chairman, here it mentions, the 
assistant Commissioner, number (4), he - you say 
that the Commissioner may, after consultation with 
the Yukon Medical Association, cause to be r emoved. 

Now we come to Section (5), the Commission may, 
again , to be consistent use the same phrase, after 
consultation with the Yukon Medical Association. 

Mr. Chairman: Five: 
(Reads Clause 5 l 

Mr. Chail·man: Clear? 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, a couple of questions. 
Sub-section (1 l, " in to the conduct, mental condition or 
capabi li ty or fitness to practice of any such person". Is 
there any question there on a person who is registered. 
professional performance? What does conduct include , 
and what does the capability? It seems to me that 
you're able to co.mplain about the conduct of a person 
whether they - excessive use of alcohol and so on. 
mental condition, capability - is that physical 
capability? We are not actually saying professional 
performance, and I think that this is one of the big 
things that we want in here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? Do you wish to 
comment on that? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this is largely 
taken from the current practice in british Columbia. 
and there are reasons, I think, why B.C. moved away 
from misconduct into conduct, because it's argued in 
the first instance as to whether something which is 
done constitutes conduct or misconduct, so it's 
prejudging things there to some extent. to talk about 
misconduct. • 

Now, our old Ordinance said "malpractice, in­
famous, disgraceful or improper conduct". Now. we 
are really talking about professional misconduct or 
conduct of a professional man whi<;h is unbecoming to 
a professional. and it's hard to line it up by talking 
about professional misconduct, when in fact. the 

conduct may be - have regard to excessive use of 
a lcohol or drugs, which may not be directly related to 
his capacity as a medical practitioner. 

But as every doctor would immediately say. was, in 
fact , unprofessional conduct, although not capable of 
definition as such in a medical way. So we have 
followed, at the wishes of the profession , we have 
followed this by taking what the British Columbia 
people did, and moved away from our former one, 
which as I said was " malpractice or infamous, 
disgraceful or improper· conduct". We ha ve 
deliberately chosen the B.C. route because people have 
begun to understand from decided law cases, what the 
meaning of this phrase is . 

M1·. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson : Well, I'm not completely satisfied, 
Mr. Chairman, because I think that anyone who reads 
this, there is really a glaring deficiency there where 
there can be a complaint against a medical person 's 
professional performance, not professional conduct, 
professional performance. 

It may not have anything to do with alcohol or 
drugs, it might be malpractice and th is type of thing, 
and this I think is one of the reasons I think why you set 
up th is type of legislation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Hibberd? 

M1·. llibberd: Mr. Chairman, I think that if the 
Honourable Member had read the Ordinance 
beforehand, she would realize that Section 26 covers 
exactly what she is talking about. 

Mr. Chah·man: Mrs. Watson? I must caution you, 
Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: That's why I am bringing up the 
question, though . 26 mentions it , but it doesn't mention 
it as a grounds for com plaint. 26 does bring that up, but 
it doesn't mention it as a grounds for complaint, and 
that's why I am questioning it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 
Yes, Doctor? 

Dr. Tanner: I thought in answer to Mrs. Watson's 
question, Mr. Chairman, that capability or fitness to 
practice was really quite clear as far as the profession 
is concerned. It does refer to professional competence. 

Mr. Chail·man: Yes. 
Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Seventeen: 
<Continues Reading Clause 5, Section 17 ) 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I would like to direct a question to 
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any of the witnesses. Would there be any validity or 
merit in the board having-being made up of one lay 
person along with two or three of the medical 
profession? Is there any case like that, or you know, it 
appears to me that the board is really strictly a 
medical board. 

Would there be any merit to having an a ppointment 
of a lay person to that board? 

Mr. Chairman: Do any one of you gentlemen wish to 
answer that? 

Dr. Brown? 

Dr. Mason-Brown: In general , Mr. Chairman , I 
might say that I know of no such board that consists of 
a Jay member . We a re judging professional. medical. 
frequently technical matters. 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman : Clear? 
<Continues Reading Cla use 5 Section 18) 

Mr. Chairman : Clear? 
<Continues Reading Cla use 5 Section 19) 

Mr. Chairman: Clear ? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr . Chairman: Twenty: 
<Continues REading Clause 5 Section 20l 

Mr. Chairman : Clear? Mr. Hibberd ? 

Mr . Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, Section 2 ends with 
"send a copy of the decision and recommenda tion to 
the complainant and the r espondent". I think it only 
reasonable that the Y.M.A. be included in the in­
formation , because it is one of their members that 
would be involved. 

Mr. Chairman : M'hmm . 

Mr. llibbe rd: So if the phrase "and the Y.M .A." 
could be added? 

Mr . Chait-man: Clear? Twenty-One : 
(Continues Reading. Clause 5, Section 21 l 

Mr. Chairman: Clear ? Twenty-Two: 
IContinues Reading Cla use 5. Section 22) 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? Twenty-Three: 
<Continues Reading Clause 5, Section 23) 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? Twenty-Four : 
IContinues Reading Clause 5, Section 24l 

Mr. Cha ir man : Mr. Hibberd? 

Mr. llibberd : Mr. Chairm an , 24, Section <2l, 
"notwithstanding sub-section (1), the Commissioner 
may suspend from practice a ' person reported upon 
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pending the findings of the Board". 

I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, that the Com­
missioner, in order to make a decision to suspend a 
medical practitioner, should do so after consul tation 
with the official medical bodv, and therefore I would 
suggest that the Commissioner. after consultation with 
the Y.M.A., is added to that list. 

Mr. Chait-man : Thank you, Mr. Hibberd. Would you 
take note of that, Mr. Legal Advisor? 

M1·. Legal Advisor : Yes, Mr . Cha irman. 

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-Five: 
<Continues REading Clause 5 section 25) 

Mr . Cha irman: Clear ? Twenty-six 
<Continues REading Clause 5 Section 26) 

Mr. Chainnan: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Does Section (a) then mean that if 
a medical practitioner was for instance tried in court 
for failing the breathalyzer that he would Jose his 
practice? Is that what this means? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor, can you answer 
that question , please? 

Mr. Hibberd : It's my understanding that 's a 
sum mary conviction, not an indictable offence. Isn't 
that right , Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. It's a 
summary conviction, but there is a narrow line, but 
this is the choice of the medical profession, not the 
legal profession, to make it this hard. This is self­
flagella tion . 

Mr. Cha irman: Supplementa ry, Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Yes, perhaps that 's for those who 
an• a lready here, but what about those who would like 
to come h.ere, Mr. Chairman ? I would jus t like to 
sa tisfy n•yself, and I'm sure Committee would like to 
sat isfy themselves, as to just how far this goes, in 
term s of indictable offence? 

Mr. Chaimtan: Mr. Lega l Advisor? 

M1·. Legal Advisor : Without reference to the 
Criminal Code, Mr. Chairman , I couldn't g ive you a 
precise definition , but I can make it avai lable. I don't 
carry the list of indictable offences in my head. and 
they are not necessarily, you know, in a tidy order, but 
I could find it in the Criminal Code ve ry promptly. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Yes, well. Mr. Chairman. what I 
am -

Mr. Cha irm an: Supplementary. Mr. Taylor ? 

lion. Mr. Taylo1·: - really trying to gel at. Mr. 
Cha irm an. is that . you know. things like failing the 
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breathalyzer type of thing, I understood that they were 
indictable offences, and I've been corrected here this 
afternoon, but I wouldn't want to see someone who has 
got into that type of a situation , and who may have a 
record; you know of that type, be refused the right to 
practice in the Yukon just, you know, for that reason. 

If he has gone out and committed a murder or 
something, yes, well that is something different. 

Mt·. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman , I would suggest that a 
conviction of an indictable offence is a fairly serious 
affair. I would also suggest that this reads that he is 
guilty of misconduct, it does not say that he is in­
capable of practicing medicine within the Territory. 
He has right of appeal. 

Mt·. Chairman: Clear? 
Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I wouldn't like to hold 
this up any more with conversation, but I would like to 
have something clarified, if you would allow me to go 
back to 16. 

Mr. ('hairman: Yes, by all means, Mr. Fleming. 

Mr. Fleming: 16 (1), 16 (2), (3) and (4). A lot of 
people may understand it very well but I am not quite 
clear. The first thing it goes to say, "conduct, mental 
condition or capability or fitness to practice", and then 
it goes on down, and I may be wrong, but I seem to find 
where they repeat themselves partially but not wholly, 
" ... a Board of Inquiry"- that's (4). "A Board of 
Inquiry appointed to inquire into the mental con­
dition", and there they only mention mental, and yet it 
seems that this is just where he is going to more or less 
appoint the Board. So wouldn't the Board be for a ll of 
these things? Why is just the one there! 

M1·. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairm an, the intention 
is-

Mr. Chairman : Yes, Mr. Legal Advisor, go ahead. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: - that three medical prac­
titioners form a board under normal circumstances, 
but if it's a mental case, then he should be represented 
on the board to some extent, by qualified persons, so 
that any mental case must have two psychiatrists on 
the board. 

Mr. Chairman: Would any of the witnesses like to 
give an explanation before going to the next question? 

Mrs. Whyard , do you have a question? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I'm back on 
page 8. with Section 26 <c >. It occurs to me that if you 'd 
like to perfect that definition in (c), " .. . donduct un­
becoming a medical practitioner or of incompetence". 
I would prefer to read that as medical or professional 
incompetence. You could be incompetent driving a 
truck, you know. 

M1·. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's a 
good correction. 

M1·. Chait·man: Ms. Millard? 
Order please. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, sorry to take it back 
again, but I have been sitting here puzzling over it and 
hoping that there would be an answer, and there 
doesn't seem to be one. It doesn't have any restriction 
on the findings of the Board of Inquiry as to time. I feel 
it could be added that with in a reasonable time the 
Board should come back with a finding, because it says 
that it can adjourn or postpone the proceedings from 
lime to lime. It could happen for ten years, but the poor 
doctor is suspended and has no solution. 

Is it possible to add that? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It is possible to add it­

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: - Mr_, Chairman, but I'm not 
sure that the medical profession would wish it, because 
sometimes proceedings commence and justice is done 
merely by the commencement of the proceedings, and 
they may be adjourned subject to something being 
done, or subject to a condition aeing fulfilled , and there 
never may be a formal end to lhe proceedings, it's just 
a file which is filed away. 

I hesitate to put a limit as to what they must do 
within a particular time limit. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr.-

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, may I just interject a question 
here? I think there's a little area of confusion, Mr. 
Legal Advisor. You arc saying when a person begins 
to-when a finding has been made by the Board of 
Inquiry may within 30 days, that is a retriction; and 
yet, on the other hand, you are leaving it open ended. Is 
there reasons for this? ' 

M•·. Legal Advisor: Yes, it's a carefully put together 
pack of cards, and I hesitate to take the Ace of Spades 
out and substitute a joker at the other end, wihout 
reviewing the whole of the context. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. (' hairman: Supplementary, Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I really only 
suggested that the words "within a reasonable time" 
be inserted, not within 60 days or within anything else, 
but I think reasonable could be interpreted by the court 
in any number of ways, and it should be interpreted by 
the court if a man has been suspended and has been 
waiting around for two years for a result from the 
inquiry, he should be- able to have recourse to the 
courts to have it questioned, whether that is 
reasonable. 
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Mr. Legal 1\dvisor: In which particular sub-section. 
Mr. Chairman? Which sub-section? 

Mr. Chairman: Which sub-section are you referring 
to. Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman. Page 5. section <v> at 
the top there, is where it says it can be adjourned or 
postponed from time to time. I would like to see added 
another section that there should be a result. some kind 
of finding of the Board wi thin a reasonable time. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Could I say the matter will be 
considered together with the other matters? 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Legal Advisor. 
Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: 27 (1): 

Mr. Chairman: 27 (1): 
(Reads Clause 5, Section 27 (1) ) 

Mr. Chairman: (2) 
(Reads Clause 5, Section 27 (2)) ) 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 28 (1) 
(Reads Clause 5, Section 28 (1) ) 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? (2) 
(Reads Clause 5, Section 28 (2) ) 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Just one question that arises in 
comtemplating this whole series of Sections. If in fact 
the Board come to a conclusion that a medical prac­
titioner has in fact, for instance through mental illness 
or some other reason become incapable of practicing 
and ought not to practice, and is suspended in the 
Territory, what protection do other jurisdictions have 
by notice or otherwise? 

In other words, this doctor simply gets up and 
leaves the Territory and goes and practices 
somewhere else. What I am saying is does the Or­
dinance -- I don't recall seeing it before in the times I 
have been through it before, and ought not the Or­
dinance provide that the joint Colleges of Physicians 
and Surgeons be notified of any decision of the Board in 
the case of these doctors? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. ·chairman, I don' t know 
what the custom is, but all jurisdictions normally 
~equire that a physician going to practice in that 
jurisdiction, will have a letter of good conduct or a let­
ter of good standing from the area from which he has 
come. 

In such a case, he would be unable to produce that 
letter, and that would be the end of that, and if a 
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request for a reference was maae to our Registrar, the 
Registrar would send to the asking jurisdiction, an ex­
tract from the note on the register setting forth the fac-
ts as they were in the register. He wouldn't give 
opinions but he would set forth the facts. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Okay, good. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 29 (1): 
(Reads Clause 5, Section 29) 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, in all of Section 29, we 
are dealing with restoring a person's name to the 
register, and renewing their licence. Is it mandatory to 
have a person's name restored to the register if they 
make application? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman. It's a matter 
of discretion, and the custom is that in such a case, a 
person goes and makes the application and he is sup­
ported by fellow practitioners, and other people who 
say that he is a good person, he has mended his ways, 
he has possibly done an examination. He may have 
done a certain course of treatment or something, and 
then if the person who hears the application is satisfied 
that this is so, he may with or without tradition, restore 
the name to the register. this is the custom but it's not 
mandatory. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I would have expected my 
Honourable friend from Whitehorse South Centre to be 
asking the Commissioner in consultation with Y.M.A. 
here in this section as he did in the earlier section. 

Mr. Chairman: Well, Mr. Hibberd, would you like 
to answer that question? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we could 
add to this Section, "in colsultation with the Y.M.A." 

Mr. Chairman: I was wondering when we were 
going to get around to that. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, it's not quite as 
easy as that, because here you are in a court situation, 
so it's slightly different. A court application is not 
necessarily in public, it may be in chambers, but it's 
still -- the judges don't consult as easily with people as 
Commission~rs . 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. Clear? 30 (1): 
<Reads Clause 5, Section 30) 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Taylor? 
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Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, at the outset it was 
pointed out that this legislation that we are dealing 
with now under the Medical Profession Ordinance, was 
to the benefit of the people of the Territory and their 
protection. 

If this in fact is the case, why then can a physican 
and surgeon, or medical practitioner in the employ of 
the federal government be exempted from this 
legislation? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

M•·· Legal Adviso•·: Mr. Chairman, as a matter of 
practice people move in and move rather fast. and we 
make the assumption that Canada has already checked 
through their qualifications and are satisfied with 
them, or the Territory may be if they happen to be out 
of the country, but they are not practicing medicine in 
the sense they are practicing as a doctor prior prac­
tice, but if they do, as I think two or three officers ago, 
the chief Medical Officer did in fact privately practice 
to some extent in his own off duly hours. He was 
required to go through the normal procedures as 
anyone else but a person not practicing for private gain 
does not come within preview of the Ordinance for 
qualifications. 

M1·. Chairman: I didn't know the doctor was in a 
position to have off duty hours. 

Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylo•·: Mr. Chairman, when you speak in 
the Ordina nce of talking about people who may - or 
practitioners who may be mentally fit or any type of 
thing, it seems to me that as long as any doctor, not­
withstanding he is in the employ of Canada, as long as 
he is dealing with people in the Yukon Territory. that 
the Territory should have the same protection from 
him as they have from any other practitioner. 

I repeat what I said originally, that I feel that any 
doctor who is actually - you know, if a doctor comes in 
here on an administrative basis, that's one thing, but if 
a doctor is dealin!! with the public and certainly it's 
just as possible to have a dodor who is half insane from 
Ottawa, as it is from anywhere else. and I say again, I 
think consideration should be given to sub(kl to offer 
the same protections as h::~ve been offered in light of 
the Yukon practitioner. 

Mr. t~hai•·man: Mr. Legal Advisor, do you wish to 
comment? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It's proper that some sections 
should apply and some sections don ' t. but the section 
itself is historically there for a long time, and the only 
change to that paragraph is to include in that 
paragraph, medical officers who are employed by the 
Territory, in case we get to that point. 

Previously it only covered doctors employed by 
Canada, that's the only change, the two Territorial 
officers. 

Mr. ('hairman: Supplementar~· . Mr. Taylor? 

lion . Mr. Taylo•·: . Well. I only rise to say that I 
think further consideration should be given to <k l 
because I think the people are just as entitled to have 
the protections from people working for government as 
those who are not working for government. 

In keeping with a good old practice that I've -or I 
shouldn't say practice. with the statements of the 
administration that they like to live up to the same 
laws everybody els<' has to in this Territory, I think in 
keeping with that. that they may take a second look at 
sub<kl. 

M1·. Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Taylor. Ms. 
Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I thoroughly agree 
with the Honourable Member from Watson Lake. In 
particular my concern is for Old Crow. The doctors 
that come to Old Crow come from Inuvik and they are 
employed by National Health and Welfare of the 
Canadian government, so that virtually in Section < k l 
we are saying that they don't necessarily have to be 
mentally fit. or all the other conditions. to go and 
practice in Old Crow. 

Mr. Chairman: Before I go any further, would any 
of the witnesses like to comment at this time? 

Dr. Mason-Rrown: Since I have an axe to grind in 
this matter, being myself a federal em ployee. perhaps 
somebody else should answer to this question, but the 
sanity or otherwise, or competence to practice of 
people in the employ of the federal government is 
subject to scrutiny by local heads of department, and 
by occasional visits from Ottawa. 

No doubt if I went bonkers, somebody would soon 
report about it. 

Mr. Chairman: I don 't want to discuss that point. 
Clear? 

Some Members: No, no. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Chairman, I don't think the 
Honourable Member from Watson Lake is satisfied. 
I'm loathe to get into this too deep at this time because 
what is going to happen is that he is going to find that 
his back-up man for the provision of medical services 
for his constituency will disappear , because that is the 
only medical practitioner in the Yukon at the moment, 
who is not licenced to practice. 

Mr. Chai•·man: Mr. Taylor, do you wish to comment 
on that point? 

lion. M•·. Taylo•·: Well, Mr. Chairman, I'm just not 
sure who the back-up man is, but if we are talking 
about the practitioner on the federal employ -

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Correct, Mr. Chairman . 

lion. Mr. Taylor : WC'II. notwithstanding who the 
back-up man is. I think any n1edical practitioner who i!' 
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practicing in the Yukon Territory shOuld be on equal 
ground with any other medical practitioner, and that 
should include anybody that 's in the employ of the 
Government of Canada or the Government of the 
Territory, as the case might be, and I still hold the 
same view I did hold in this matter a few moments ago. 

If he's working with the general public of the Yukon , 
the general public are entitled to the same protections 
as in the case of the other non-governmental doctors. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard'? 

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I thoroughly 
agree and I can't see the advantage in having them 
exempted. I would like to know why this exemption is 
there. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I'm sure they are exempt on 
historical grounds, Mr. Chairman, but I'm sure 
probably the convenient thing is to apply in most of the 
Ordinance, certainly the discipline, malpractice and so 
forth sections, to doctors whether they are employees 
or not, and the qualifications sections and so forth 
should be left alone. 

I think it's a reasonable compromise to me, we will 
apply some of the Ordinance to them , but not all of the 
Ordinance, and that would meet the historical per­
spective as well, because we may need somebody 
coming quickly from Inuvik, back and forward. Things 
happen like this and we should be able to have the 
maneuverability to be able to move a doctor in federal 
service or out again, without having to go through 
these various qualifications which the government is 
paying for anyway. 

But so far as discipline is concerned, he should be 
subject to this Ordinance, I think , and its standards of 
qualifications. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Legal Advisor. 
Mr. Lang , do you have a question? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Yes, I don't know if the Legal 
Advisor can answer this. Does the - the federal 
government must have some standards for the medical 
practitioners, and they must review these, don 't they, 
on a continual basis. I think we are getting into a trivial 
argument, really. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Lang. Me. 
Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: That's fine , my questions has been 
answered by the Legal Advisor. 

Mr. Chairman: Okay. Mr. Legal Advisor, please 
take not of that section <k l. 

Mt·. Legal Advisor: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 31(1): 
<Reads Clause 5, Section 31) 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, then we are saying 
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here that the Chief Medical Health Officer of the 
Territory is a federal employee in Section 31 must in 
fact be registered under this Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Is that correct. Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes , Mr . Chairman. We are 
saying that the person who is appointed to these posts 
must be registered. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: So then -

Mt·. Chairman: Supplementary'? 

l-Ion. Mr. Taylot·: - it follows that as we talked 
about in <k) , he should live up to all the provision of the 
Ordinance? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor'? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, not all of them, 
but some of them , yes. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: He should. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 32(1): 
<Reads Clause 5, Section 32) 

Mr. Chait·man: Clear? 33(1): 
<Reads Clause 5, Section 33) 

Mr. Chairman. Ms. Millard ? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman , to go back to the for­
mer section where it states under- on page 12, (b), "a 
person referred to in paragraph 29(1)(k l. I can't find 
any 29(1)(k ). I can certainly find a 3Hkl. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The numbering was changed, 
Mr. Chairman. It should be 30. 

Ms. Millard: It should be 30. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you satisfied, Ms. Millard'? 
What is your question? 

Ms. Millard: It still doesn't make too much sense to 
me because that's the person who is exempt. 

"Nothing in this Ordinance applies to" , down to (k), 
and it means- It is very confusing. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It is a form of interpreta tion 
which applies to other Ordinances of the Territory. 
They don't use the word "doctor ", they use the word 
"medical prac titioner" or " duly qualified medical 
practitioner" in a large number of our Ordinances, and 
this is saying what that phrase means. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Well , Mr . Chairman, once again I 
can 't see any reason why <k l can't be eliminated. 
That 's twice now we have come across the fact that it 
doesn't apply really. You are saying even if that person 
is exempf, he is going to be called-he is going to be 



. . 

Page 117 

recognized as a medical practitionC'r. ancllw i ~ going to 
be able to fit into other Ordinam:t•s as a lllP<h c:d 
practitioner. So why even put it in Settion 311? 

Mr. Legal Advisor : Mr . Chairman. we nn~ not 
trying to be logical , we are tr ying to he ekar \\'hat \H' 
are saying is that in Ordinances dealing with taxes. in 
Or dinances dealing with a ntyriad of other things. wr 
wi ll often say a person must pass an exan11nation 
under the Workmen's Compensation Mt hy a duly 
qualified medical practitioner . or somt•thinJ~ lik<' that. 

We are just defining what those words tn<•an lor all 
the 75 Ordinances of the Terri ton. but \H' ar<' not at­
tempting to be logical. Wr arr just saying that is so. 

Mr. Chairman: Supplemrntary. 1\ls t\lil] ;.ll'<l'? 

Ms. Millard: No I th ink he has confusNintt• <·nough. 

Mr. Chairman: I have just one qut>ry I hav<> here 
without being disrespeclful, Dr. Brown I am curious 
as to the last word in 33 <I l. "animal" l>ors that 
govern some of our populacr hen• or \\hat'? 

Dr. Mason-Brown : 33 (1 l? 

Mr. Chairman: 33 <I l, thr last word in tlw total . 

Dt·. Mason-Rrmvn: No comment. 

Mr. Chairman : Thank you. Dr. Rrown 

Mr. Legal t\dvisor: That is carrit>cl ovrr from the 
old Ordinance. and it lias been therr for a long. long 
time. 

Mr. Chairm an: I guess we are gt•tting ,·rr:v· 
animal istic. 

Yes. Dr . Brown? 

Dr. Mason-Brnwn: Mr. Chairman . I wondrr if the 
L egal Advisor could br asked to add a catrgory of 
registration. namely regl::.tration from non n•sident 
physicians. That is to say, physicians who hav<· bet•n 
dul y licensed to practice in the Yukon. and han• 
practiced in thr Yukon , and arr absent for pl'riocls of 
let us say a year. for reasons such as study l<'an• and 
so on. if they can be listed on a non rrsident 
registration. 

This is the custom in certain provincrs such as in 
B.C. where I think they pay a nominal tee of !i:!i.OO a 
year or son1ething of the kind. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chainnan. tins t<Jn h<• 
done. It would make them equal in the ntlwr 
professions. wr could have a $10.00 a year ft'l'. and if 
they keep it up and then five years lat<•r tlwy canH' 
back. if they hadn't paid thr $10 00. tht>\ would pa' 
$50.00 to be r eregistered. 

This can be done, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman : Is that c·lear on that S<.>ction'? \\'t• go 
now to S<'ction 6 (I l. I bcliPve. 
<Heads Clausr ti < 1 l ) 

i\lr. Chairnwn : 1\lr. Ta:vlor? 

lion. Mr. Tavlor: Mr. Chairman. I assume that in 
this Bill it's go-ing to take some time to set up the 
hoards and the machinery, so this is then Section 6 
"hich I also r ise to point out can't be the right number, 
is this rrqui red in this Ordinance, or can it come into 
torce on the day of assent? 

:\Jr. Chainnan: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

:\Jr. L1•).(al t\1lvisor: At the risk of being con­
tradictorv. it becomes law on the davit's assented to. 
hut it isn't given active force unless an Order of the 
Cotnm issioner is madr later. 

But out of caution, I think. the House in a com­
plic-ated Bill such as this, where relations may have to 
lw <'stabl ishcd with other jurisdictions, it would be wi se 
to allow this time in casr there arc regulations forms to 
ht> prepared. 

i\Jr. Chairman: Clear? Yes, Mrs . Watson? 

:\It·s. \\ alson: Mr. Chairman, one more question 
that doesn't come through very cleal'lv in this 
legislation. If you have a temporary permit to practice 
medicinr. is your name put on the register? 

:\Jr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

:\Jr. Lrgal Advisor: It's not reall:v put on the register 
as such . It's a l ist of people who are permitted to 
practice medicinr under perm it. but they are subject 
to discipline just the same. There is a section for this. 

:\Jr. Chairman: Supplementary. Mrs. Watson? 

:\Irs. Watson: Yrs, Mr . Chairman, that's what I was 
going to bring up. Are they subject to discipline, and in 
the discipline. Wl' arc saying that one of the 
disciplinar:-: actions is to suspend the~, or to suspend 
their licence and remove their names from the 
n•gister. So shouldn 't you say "or to suspend their 
temporary permit" or something like this? 

:\Jr. Chairma n: Mr . Legal Advisor? 

:\Jr. Lrg<Il Adviso•·: Mr. Chairman , to avoid com­
plicat ing the Bill in its cirafting stages. and I had 
forgotten to includr thr permits when I was drafting 
the Bill. I put in sub Sect ion 2 of Section 32 which said, 
''tht- provisions apply to permit holders and shall be 
applird mutatis mutandis as if his name was on the 
t <'gistcr". and then the whole thing applies to, in an 
adapted way. as rxactly as if through the register. and 
it's somthing thr Registrar will understand. 

:\Jr. ('hairman: Supplementary. Mrs. Watson? 

.\Irs. \\alson: l\1r. Chairman . you also forgot to 
tnclude another section in that then, "holding a permit 
pursuant to Section 7". that's the temporary permit. 8. 
But you should also includr Srction 7. This is where you 
get prrmits for mcntbcrs of thr Armed Forces. and 
wouldn't this be one wa~· of gell ing the people who are 
<'t\11 S<'l'\'ants who \\Ork for tht> Territorial Govern­
IPl'nt or < :ovrrnnwnt of Canada to fall under the 
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disciplinary action if you put it in under Section 2'! 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman , I don't think -

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lega l Advisor. 

Mr. Lega l Advisor: - this aims to control the 
doctors in the Armed Forces in that way. but that will 
appear- the employees of the government of Canada 
or Territory will have the discipline sections applied to 
them . if rn y recommendation to the adnlinistration 
were accepted . The discipl ine sections apply to them 
but not the qualification or fee paying sections. but 
then assum ing that the Canadian Forces, that that 
person would be covered by the discipline section in 
respect to practicing within the Territory . 

But what would happen to the non -forces within thP 
native organization , is something which I am lost on. 
Mr. Chairman. Like the practice of acpuncture is 
Ch inese forces, Mr . Chairman. 

Mr. Chaimtan: Thank you , Mr. Legal Advisor . 
Mr . Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor : Mr. Chairman. I would suggest at 
this time if there is no further di scussion on the Bill . 
that perhaps thr witnesses may be excused and 
progress can be reported . 

Mr. Chairman: I was just com ing to that. Mr . 
Taylor. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Chairm an? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Whyard? 

lion. Mt·s. Whyard: Mr. Chairman . I would just like 
to thank on behalf of all the members, representatives 
of the Yukon Medical Association and Mr. Duncan. for 
taking this time to come today, and I want to say also 
that I appreciate the assistance they have provided in 
the work we have done on the amendments to this 
Ordinance, and I wish to congratulate them on behal f 
of this House for their attitude towards the discipline 
which. will be imposed upon their profession by 
themselves. 

They are going to hold themselves up to scrutiny of 
their professional competenct in the eyes of thei r 
peers, and I know of no other professional group which 
does so. 

Thank you very much. 

Thr Witnesses: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. gentlemen . 

!Applause l 

Mt·. (' hait·man: Order , please. At this point I would 
like to report progress on this Bill , pending furth er 
review by the Legal Advisor and I would like at this 
point. to hand the chair back to Mr. Chairman . 

Mr . Hibberd? 

!Dt· . Hibberd resumes Chair l 
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Mr. Chairman: I will now declare a brief recess. 

Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I will now call this Committee to or­
der. 

Bill Number 9 Continued 

Mr. Chairman: We will proceed with the Clause by 
Clause reading of Bill Number 9. We have Mr. Peter 
Gillespie with us as a witness. 

At the time of our adjournment, we were on Section 
14, and there was some question raised at that time 
regarding the insurance coverage of vehicles traver ­
sing the Territory, and Mr. Gillespie might have an ex­
planation for us. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I gather the concern 
here is that some truckers coming through, or passing 
through the Territory, may do so in spite of what is 
provided for in this Ordinance, without a valid motor 
vehicle liability insurance, and we are now talking 
about enforcement. 

I think it's quite possible that, for example, a car, a 
motor vehicle, can get by through the Yukon without a 
valid insurance card, but it is virtually impossible for a 
trucker to do so, because a trucker requires a permit 
before he can proceed -- he stops at the weigh scale 
station on entering the Territory, and before he can 
proceed any further, he has to have a permit. He will 
not be issued a permit, as is indicated here in this Sec­
tion, unless he can show that he has a valid motor 
vehicle insurance liability card. 

Am I answering the question that was put? 

Mr. Chairman: Are there any other questions 
regarding this? Mrs. Watson? 

( 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, we understand this. 
The question that was brought up this morning is the 
fact that some of the insurance companies, this may be 
some of the cause for it, are not-- American insurance 
companies are not as creditable as others, and it's 
more difficult to collect or to get some form of action 
from some of the companies than it is from others. 

Now, this was just a surmise that I have made from 
the debate that went on, and maybe the Legal Advisor 
could enlarge upon that. 

Mr. Legal Advisor; It's just a question of insurance 
in respect of the vehicles? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Legal Advisor, I 
commented that it appeared that some of the insurance 
companies, insurance coverage, that some of the 
truckers had was more creditable than others, and that 
we are finding it difficult to collect from some of these 
companies, insurance companies. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I would like 
to attempt to answer that. 

I think we are on the verge of providin~ a satisfac-
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tory answer to that particular issue, where the 
problem is an accident, a road accident, because we 
are presently contemplating bringing in no-fault in­
surance, which would have the effect of <a) in the event 
of an accident, the insurance company, the Yukon In­
surance Company of the person whose vehicle is 
damaged or who is hurt, immediately paying to that 
person, an amount of money according to a schedule 
set up for that purpose. 

In other words, if a truck or vehicle from another 
jurisdiction were to enter the Yukon and be covered by 
insurance that is not creditable, that would not present 
a problem to the person who was damaged in the 
Yukon, because he would receive immediately, com­
pensation from his own insurance company, who would 
then recover damages from the outside insurance com­
pany, or if that person did not have insurance, and he 
had gotten by into the Yukon in spite of our laws to the 
contrary, the insurance company in the Yukon would 
then turn to the individual to recover. 

But it is in this manner that we are seeking to come 
to grips with what is a very real problem. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. F leming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. By your 
remarks, I may take it that you are in the process of 
trying to bring some sort of insurance to the Yukon 
Territory that is handled more or less by the govern­
ment, rather than private enterprise, I would say? 

Mr. Gillespie: 11 ::.Chairman, no-fault insurance as 
it's handled in t ne provinces, involves generally 
speaking, a premium from each motor vehicle in­
surance holder of something in the order of $12.00 a 
year, and that money is paid to the insurance com­
panies who themselves undertake to cover the pollcy 
holder with no-fault insurance. 

the government is not involved in the ad­
ministration, the government does not fund it under 
this scheme. It's totally the insurance companies 
themselves. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, since we have Mr. 
Gillespie now, I would like to go back to Section 13 
where we were discussing the fact that a number of 
people come into the Yuiton, partict:.larly to Dawson 
City, and stay for a period of three months without 
having to be registered, which means to me that they 
don't have any -- they could get by without any in­
surance because they don't have to register and prove 
that they have insurance. 

I was wondering if that period of 90 days can be 
reduced to 30 days, since many of the jobs in Dawson 
City are filled by people from other proveinces, and 
don't last more than 90 days? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I don't have a firm 
opinion. I would like to seek some advice from Mr. 
Taylor, if I may on this particular issue, because when 
we were revising this Ordinance, the only aspect of 
that particular section that we dealt with, was the 
semi-trailer definition, and I quite honestly must admit 
that I am not up-to-date on the rationale for this par-

ticular existing-

Mr. Chairman: If Committee concurs, we could 
have Mr. Taylor come forward as a witness. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Agreed? 

Mr. Chairman: Did you hear the question. Mr. 
Taylor? 

Mr. ll erb Taylor: I heard the question. Mr. 
Chairman , a nd this question came up a couple of weeks 
ago, but one thing we must remember here is that th is 
is what's termed a reciprocal arrangement made with 
all the other jurisdictions in Canada, and if we cut our 
tourist exemption down to 30 days, well then our 
tour ists, when they are in the other provinces, or in the 
States, will be cut down to 30 days also, so -

We are making a survey right now, to find out 
exactly what the other jurisdictions in Canada allow 
our people, so that we can allow exactly the same, and 
we are trying to talk all the rest of the jurisdictions in 
Canada to make it uniform. so as it is now we are 
working on it, but we can't do anything about the 90 
days without hurting ourselves. 

Ms. Millard: Well Mr . Chairman. then we tan be 
assured that the 90 days wi ll be changed, or- I mean. 
obviously the administration has it in its mind to 
change it or they wouldn't be inquiring? 

Mr. lle•·b Taylor: Well, I d idn 't say that we were 
going to change it. We want to be the same as they are 
in the other provinces. Some of the other provinces 
give s ix months, but we want to try and make it 
uniform . 

But this is only an exemption for people touring for 
pleasure now, keep that in mind. There is another 
period of grace for a person who comes from the other 
provinces and becomes gainfully employed in the 
Territory. 

Ms. Millard: M'hmm. 

M•·· Herb Taylor: We are also looking at that, 
because the reciprocal arrangement there is that we 
give the same per iod of grace that the other provinces 
give to our people when they go out and become 
gainfully em ployed in a province, and we are looking at 
the whole thing . We are trying to get the whole thing 
tied together to make it uniform. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr . Chairman, I appreciate that. 
but I would really like to know that the administration 
fully realizes that there are many people who are 
coming into the Territory and working on that three 
month pleasure period, and it 's pretty obvious in a 
small town where there are several people you know 
what cars they have and where they are working, and 
there have been 'Complaints to the adm inistration 
before. when the Executive Committee toured to 
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Dawson , they wer<' given this complaint, as well as 
many times before. 

I have certainly complained to the R.C.M.P. in 
Dawson myself about it , that it really should be 
regulated, at least it should be looked into with more 
thoroughness. 

Thank you. 

Mr. lle•·h Taylor: Mr. Chairman. this is exactly 
right. This is an enforcement problem. and I take the 
view , and I have compla ined to the R.C.M.P. that when 
a person comes into the Yukon Territory and becomes 
gainfully en1ployed, h<' has no grace whatsoever. H(' 
must register his vehicle then and there, and thereby 
become insured, and it is s trictly an enforcement 
problem. We are trying to get the R.C.M.P. to pick 
these people up, but they just haven 't seen fit to do it up 
to now. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

M•·s. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'm not satisfied wi th 
thr witness' explanation of no-fault insurance. Maybe I 
could ask Mr. Taylor who is more in day-to-day con­
tact, is it true. or is this one of the reasons that some of 
the insurance companies that the truckers have from 
the Slates. arr morP creditable than other, and ar(' 
rasier to deal with in order to gel some claims from 
thern? This is thr proble ru that some of the people ar(' 
heing faced with. 

If t here's an accident. they just - it 's almost im­
possible to collect from their insurance company. say 
down in Georgia or Texas. 

Mr. llerb Taylor: I don't think that has anything to 
do with no-fault insurance. 

As I understood the explanation. the explanation 
was that we are trying to overcome that problem by 
instituting no-fault insurance coverage. which would 
overcome the problem. 

In other words. now we do have a difficult tim(' to 
collect from American insurance companies. I have 
phoned them myself in .California and in Alaska. and if 
they so wish. they can just deny liability. and then it 's 
up to the people here to go and sue them. or they say 
that their client was not at fault and they deny liability. 
TherE> is nothing you can do about that. that then 
becom es a civil case. and there's noth ing we can do 
about that. 

However. if wr do institute no-fault insurance. w<> 
can forget all those worries. because we will havt> 
immediate paymrnts n1ade and then the insurance 
con1panies themselves will lake whatever subrogation 
they can to collect. But the immPdiate payments will 
be made. without regard to fault. in cases of accident. 

And the payments that I am talking about . will be 
made by our own insurance compan:v·. your insurancP 
company will make a paymrnt if you become injured 
and have no-fault insurance coverage. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr . Chairman. my insurancP com­
pany will only 111ake the paymrnt if I pay more on my 
prenlium , and we are all going to have to pay more on 
our premium. It 's fine to say no-fault insurance. Why 
should we pay more on our premium to protect these 
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jokers who are coming through? Is there any other way 
we can deal with them? 

Mr. Herb Taylo•·: Well the premium they charge, 
and they are offering no-fault insurance coverage right 
now, and the premium is somewhere in the neigh­
bourhood of 10 to $12.00 a year , and I think it 's well 
worth it, and I can't think of any other way you can 
solve the problem. 

M•·. Chairman: Mr. Be rger? 

Mr. Berger: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I would like to go back to Section 13, since I raised 

the original question on that thing. I wasn't so much 
concerned about the people coming in from other 
provinces in Canada, because we know they do have in­
surance, but what my question was mostly . con­
cerned with was with people coming in from Alaska 
and working in the Territory on thei,r own placer 
claims, or the other businesses they had in the 
Territory, and operating under an Alaska licenl!e 
plate. 

Nobody knows if they are really covered with in­
surance, and I think Mrs. Watson's question is 
something on a similar basis. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman, the only 
solution for that is that they should not be allowed to be 
operating their vehicles with Alaska licence plates on, 
if they are working in Dawson or running a mining 
claim in Dawson, or working anywhere in the 
Territory. They should be immediately required to 
register their vehicle in the Yukon, and to do that, they 
must have insurance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask a 
question of Mr. Taylor, if I may. 

In regards to the insurance companies in/the States, 
we --- do we have any idea of which insurance com­
panies are credible and which aren't? The reason I am 
aksing this is because I agree with the Honourable 
Member from Kluane. I don 't think it's my-- the onus is 
on me to get no-fault premiums to protect myself from 
somebody coming up the highway. 

In other words, what I am saying is is there any way 
that we could say okay, if you have this insurance, we 
have found that they don 't come through with the 
monies or the compensation to the victims in the past, 
therefore if you have got that insurance, you are not 
allowed to go through the Territorial unless you buy a 
different insurance? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: We must not forget that the nor­
mal law is that when two people have a dispute, they 
resolve it through the courts. Now, some insurance 
companies are reasonably easy to settle with, some are 
not , and this applies throughout Canada. 

Once you are dealing with the United States, the in­
surance company who is far away can prove difficult to 
settle with , and can threaten through his general 
manager or accident manager or through his lawyer, 
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to refuse to settle, but some people would consider a 
reasonable case, so the only recourse is the normal law 
for everybody, take the matter to court, get a decree 
and then the decree is enforceable. 

Now, somewhat the same situation happens to oc­
cur within Canada, by people who are involved in an 
accident were from the United States who feel that 
they are in the right, but a Canadian insurance com­
pany will prove difficult to settle with, when he is 
dealing with a California or a Texas resident, and the 
person will settle for less than he otherwise would, 
because he would have to come to the Yukon to litigate 
his case, and it's difficult for anybody in ad­
ministration to make a judgment as to which insurance 
company is difficult to settle with, and which is 
reasonable to settle with, in order to form a list. 

So I don't think there is any true answer to this, ex­
cept just to bear with it. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I have asked 
this question every year, and I am going to ask it again, 
I have never been satisfied with the answer : Why 
shouldn't there be a stop at the border that does not 
allow a person with valid insurance to come into the 
Yukon Territory? There's a at least one case every 
year, where an American tourist, or someone 
travelling througt. , runs into a Yukon family , there can 
be any kind of problems ensue from it, there can be 
death, there can be dismemberment, there can be any 
imaginable amount of problems resulting from this, 
and there is now way for that family to get any com­
pensation in any way, shape or form 

Now, why should we be allowing this person with ab­
solutely no protection whatsoever, to be using the 
Yukon Highways? there's a person in town who writes 
me a letter every year, asking whether I will ask this 
question on behalf of the Territorial Government, 
every year I get up and ask it and I guess they say, well 
we can't stop people at tb border and check whether 
they have valid bsurance. 

I think we should stop them and sell them a cam­
pground sticker at the border, every one of them and 
check whether they have got insurance. If they don't 
want to buy the campground sticker, they don't want to 
show insurance, get them to hell out of the country? 
Who wants them in here in the first place? 

I am deadly serious about it. There has been ab­
solute tragedy affected to Yukon people, because we 
allow without any qualification, in any way, shape or 
form, people to come up in any type of vehicle, in any 
type of condition, with any amount of a rmaments , to 

.travel Yukon Highways. Why do we allow this to hap-. 
pen when we don 't have to, and other jurisdictions can 
allow who they want into their jurisdiction and 
travelling on their highways? Why? 

Mr. Chain11 an: Mr. Gillespie? 

Mt·. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman. I don 't have an an­
swer to the question , this perennial question . I'm 
aware of this proposed solution to it. to a number of 

problems. including campground stickers . and in­
cluding insurance. 

I can only say in all honesty that some of our people 
are working on this problem. they are in the course of 
preparing advice to me, which I wi ll in tum be bringing 
to the Executive Committee on this very subject. I 
don't have it yet. I don't know what their tentative 
conclusions arc. and I can't. answer your question at 
this point in time. 

It is not being ignored, it is being actively worked 
on. but I'm afraid I can't sat isfy you with a definite 
answer at this time. 

lion. 1\lrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairm an ? 

1\l r. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

lion . Mt·s. Whyard: Could I ask Mr. Gillespie, if he 
has some lime frame , if we keep th is Ordinance open 
for another week. then he bring in a section? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr . Chairman, I would be reluctant 
to rush the answer to this question, when we a re at­
tem pting to look at this thing comprehensively, both 
with regard to no-fault insurance. With regard to the 
Unsatisfied Judgment Fund. which is sort of the 
corollary to no-fault insurance, to campground 
stickers, and to checking for people, va lid insurance in 
every vehicle that enters the Territory. 

These various issues are all inter-related. a nd I 
would be reluctant. unless there was a firm wish for me 
to do so. to come up with an answer within the next 
week or l'ven within the next two weeks, because I'm 
just not sure that I would be really confident that I am 
coming up with a good and fair answer to the complex 
questions that arc being raised. 

But I think I can fairly undertake to have that ready 
for the spring. In the meantime. though, I'm­
whatever we do then. need not in any way impinge 
upon what we are seeking to do now in the Motor 
Vehicles Ordinance, because we can institute these 
things, I ould think with the powers that we have now, 
we would not need to add new powers to the Motor 
Vehicles Ordinance to bring them into being. 

Hun. :\lr. l\kKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I can only add 
that I would surr br disappointed if I went through 
another term without that question being answered , 
because it's been about twelve years now. 

The other one is there is an answer to the people 
once they are gainfully employed. I don 't kno_w what 
section it is or what Ordinance, but I thmk the 
Territorial Secretary can tell us wha t Section it is 
where a person does become gai nfully em ployed. they 
are then liable to have to take out plates-is it under 
the Motor Vehicles Ordinance that that Section is? I 
rem em b<'r it very dramatically. because one summer I 
was very perturbed that a surface crew ca':Yl P· the 
tota l-even· car in the placr on th<' Alaska H1ghway. 
had Alberta plates. and there were friends of mine who 
were looking for employn1cnt front university f:om the 
Yukon. that couldn't find <'mploymrnt w1th the 
Departn•ent of Publie Works tha t sumn ter . 

I fe lt so stronglv about il. I went and told the con­
stabulary in one of the small communit ies about this 
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whole camp full of people rac ing up and down the high­
ways, getting cheques from the D.P.W. and working in 
the Yukon Territories, so they went in and pinched the 
whole works, and unfortunately enough. I couldn 't let 
well enough alone, I went to a local dance and I men­
tioned this one night, and for my pains. I was severely 
beaten about the head and shoulders. by the people I 
had ratted on. 

But in any case, you know. it is in the Ordinance.and 
if you are mad enough about it to make the point and 
1nake the case. which I am. I think that 's a bunch of 
bologna. that they arr a llowed to come out here. work 
all summ<·•·. use their cars in the Yukon highways and 
don 't contribute onr red cent to the Yukon economy. I 
think you can do this if you feel a s strongly about it as I 
do. I just would recommend that you keep your mouth 
shut about it afterwards. 

Mr. <"hairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr . Flt>ming: Yrs, Mr. Chairman. 
I have onr. it is insurancr. it's not e ntirely per­

ta ining to this. and yet I would say it is in this sense. 
that I would like to ask the Legal Advisor. I think tlw 
question as to an accident on the highway that involws 
an Amer ican car. and a Yukon resident. and llw fau lt 
was not on the Yukon resident. no fault of his at a ll. 

Right now under thr present legislation. would hi!' 
insurance rise due to the cause of that :1ccident? 

Mr. Ll'gal i\!lvisnr : I couldn't say for sure. but it's 
the custom of the insurancr co111 panies. when a claim 
is made. to s tart incrPasing premiums. whether or not 
the claim is successful. It's a 111atter of bu:;iness bet­
ween the insurance company and their client. It's not 
controlled by law. 

Mr. Chairman: Could we now proceed? 
7: 

<Reads Section 23) 

Mr. Chairman: Section 15, Section 25 of the said 
Ordinance is repealed and the fo llowing substituted 
therefore: 25 (]): 
(Reads Section 25 l 

Mr . Chairman: Clear? 
16: Section 34 (I ) of the said Ordinance is repealed 

and the following substituted therefor: 
(Reads Section 34 (I l l 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Yes, just, Mr . Chairman. as a 
matter of information. 1 could perhaps direct a 
question to t he Registrar of Motor Vehicles. and I note 
in my marginal notes in the Bill that we are talking 
about going now to plastic covered licences. just what 
form - when will these be introduced. and what form 
will they take? Will you require a picture on them. or 
could we have just a quick description of what the 
progran• is? 

1\11'. llerh Taylor: Well. that is tlw plan. that the:-r 
will have a photograph of the operator. and we hope to 
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have them instituted before the next year. 

There isn 't any really dire requirement to have an 
effective date now, because as you know, all the 
operators' licences fall due on the birth date, so we can, 
whenever we get the equipment. we can institute the 
program any time we like. 

lion. 1\lr. Taylot·: Well, Mr. Chairman. would this 
not cause a bit of a problem for people throughout the 
Terr itory who don't happen to Jive in this great 
Metropolis. and that's the reason I asked about the 
picture. If you have to gel your picture taken like on a 
passport. it's an extremely difficult thing. and even if 
the government were to send this equipment around, 
as I believe they did for thr I.D. cards of some sort. 
that everybody <'Ould get near it . How does a person in 
the hinterland fulfill this requirement? 

1\lr. llcrh Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman. we will issue 
a licence <'xaclly the same as we do now, and then 
when thr can•era is avai lable at Watsoi1 Lake. the 
people at Watson Lake will be advised to come in and 
have their picturr em bossed on their certificate. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: What I an1 saying is that perhaps 
all the people l'an't come into a community. There are 
peop)(• who live. you know. in and a round. or mayb<• out 
on holidays and this type of thing and that don't come 
to Whitehors(' and won't be around town when your 
fancy equipmmt is there. How do you deal wi th th at? 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Well how are they going to get a 
licence then? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: You don't need one for Watson 
Lake. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well again, Mr. Chairman, they 
are entitled to a licence, and notwithstanding they 
don't have a picture photograph, this is what I'm con­
cerned about, and I don't think it's a laughing matter, I 
think it's a serious one. 

Another instance where they guy in the hinterland 
gets the kick in the teeth. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairma? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie? 

Mr. Gillespie: I think you may have misunderstood 
Mr. Taylor's answer. · 

A person will initially be able to get a licence that 
does not have his picture on it, but when the equipment 
is in his locale, then he will be asked to come and have 
the picture then at that time embossed on his licence. 

So he doesn't have to wait until the equipment is 
there before he obtains the licence. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: And just one more question, Mr. 
Chairman. If he is not in the locale, he is out on 
holidays or out in the bush, or out working some place 
and the equipment moves away, his licence is still not­
withstanding valid? 

Mr. Gillespie: Yes, that's correct. 
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Hon. Mr. Taylor: Okay, that's good enough 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, just a question of ad­
ministration again on Section (b), when the person who 
is being convicted of those offences delivers his licence 
to the judge, magistrate, et cetera, does it go then to 
the Registrar for the marking of that conviction on the 
licence, and is returned? 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Well this Section has been amen­
ded because up to now, the licence was turned into the 
magistrate or judge or whoever, and he endorsed the 
conviction on the back, but they can't do it now when 
they are plasticized, so the only thing they would be 
able to do would be to suspend it. That's why this has 
been changed. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, am I to understand that 
where in former cases the licence wasn't suspended, 
it will now be suspended? 

Mr. Herb Taylor: The magistrate has that jurisdic­
tion in the present sub (2) of that section which is not 
here. 

He may, upon making conviction, suspend or cancel 
the licence and shall send the suspended or cancelled 
licence to the Commissioner together with a re~rt set­
ti~ out the nature of the conviction and the cir­
cumstances 

He may, upon making conviction, suspend or cancel 
the licence and shall send the suspended or cancelled 
licence to the Commissioner together with a report set­
ting out the nature of the conviction and the cir­
cumstances of the offence. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I should point out that 
it says "shall" - the licence shall be delivered to the 
magistrate. That means in those cases there's no 
choice of whether or not the licence will 'Je suspended. I 
read it as being that because it was a plastic licence, it 
would have to go back to the administration to be 
marked and replasticized, or something like that, 
because you can't mark it because it 's plastic. 

I didn 't feel that all those offences should 
necessarily -- we are presuming that they a ll have to 
have a suspension. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, as I understand this, 
the licence shall be delivered to the judge, magistrate 
or justice. The judge, magistrate or justice may then 
suspend the licence in accordance with the Ordinance. 
He may choose not to suspend the licence, but never­
theless, to record and this would be recorded in the 
Registrar of Motor Vehicle's office, the infraction. 

So it's either a recording in the Motor Vehicle - in 
the Registrar of Motor Vehicle's office, or a suspen­
sion, e ither one. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

M1·. Fleming: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I'm not so concerned as to what the judge would get 

for a licence now, I would hand him the pieces of my 
licence now, but I am concerned about Mr . Taylor's 
comments as to the pictures, and Mr. Tavlor again, his 
comments as to how the pictures would be handled. I · 
think it's either, it has to be a licence to be or not to be , 
because if you do make an Ordinance of any kind and 
issue licences that need pictures and you are going to 
take the machine to Watson Lake or something, that's 
fine to say. 

As the Honourable Member has said, people are no t 
there. Now we might not make it mandatory, it may 
not have to be, but if that would be the case, that you 
didn't have to be there and you could still go with that 
licence, there would be from that, an abusive program, 
because nobody is going to get their picture taken. 

Just a comment, I feel that to make sure it is either 
to be or not to be, one way or the other. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylo•·: Yes, Mr . Chairman , while we are 
on the subject of licences and revocation and so forth of 
licences for certain periods of time, and I'm sure the 
Registrar of Motor Vehicles will agree that I have been 
on the phone two or three t imes on this issue to his 
officers and himself. 

That is the problem that arises when a licence is by 
the court. it's suspended, and the licence is delivered to 
the Registrar and again when you live in the outlying 
districts , and there was a great difficulty with many 
people getting their licences back from the appropriate 
date. If, for instance, the licence was suspended for 30 
days, at the end of that 30 days , the person is legally 
entitled to have in his possession his licence again, and 
I'm wondering- I know I phoned on this question , oh 
perhaps a month and a half ago, and apparently that 
there was no rea l policy that I could determine from 
the officet that I spoke to. 

I'm wondering if as yet there is a policy devised 
whereby these licences will defin itely be mailed out or 
distributed back to the owner of the licence, in the case 
of the person in the hinterland, out of Whitehorse. so 
that he can have his licence available to hi m when he 
has served his requirement of law. 

Mr. Jl('l·b Taylor: Yes, Mr . Chairman, we have been 
looking into that, and we are going to go further than 
that. We are looking into the feasibi lity of leaving the 
licence. if it is suspended at Watson Lake, of leaving 
their licence down there with the Territorial agent, so 
that - and it can be recalled on the date that the 
suspension expires, so that it can be mailed back to the 
operator if he is still in Watson Lake. 

Our loca l office here, we are setting up a recall 
system so tha t they will automatically turn up for 
mailing when their suspension is over. 
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lion. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

lion. Mr. McKinnon: There certainly has never 
been any prosectuions laid if a person knew that his 
day was up and through mail strike or any reason that 
licence hadn 't been returned from the Registrar to the 
place of residence, that person was entitled to drive a 
motor vehicle without fear of prosecution. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Oh yes, that 's righ t, but there has 
never been a prosecution for that. If his suspension has 
terminated. 

Mr. Chairman: 17: 
Mrs. Whyard? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman , could I ask Mr. 
Taylor if he would tell us why he is pursuing this new 
form of licence? What are the advantages? All we have 
heard so fa r are the disadvantages. 

Mr. Herb TayJ01·: You mean of a plasticized 
licence? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Yes. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Well , have you ever seen them 
after they have been used for six or eight months? 

lion . Mrs. Whyard: Mine is fine, Mr. Chairman, 
m ine is fine. 

lion. Mr. McKinnon: Here we will have an exam pie. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Over half of them that we get in 
the office are in shreds or in two or three pieces, or -

That is why, and also to eliminate the possiblity of 
having the typing changed or the birth date a ltered and 
things like that. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: It is just my weight that I alter, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Section 17: "Section 38 of the said 
Ordinance is amended by adding thereto the following 
new sub-section, (3): 
(Reads Section 38(3)) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, in perusing 
this section it occurred to me that a person could have 
a driver's licence for the province of - well any 
Province in Canada, could have an international 
driver 's licence, should -does this not mean that you 
shall not be in possession of more than one valid Yukon 
operator's licence? 

Mr. Herb Taylor: No, Mr. Chairman, it doesn 't. If 
you have an internationa l driver's licence, it's not va lid 
in the Yukon, it's not valid until you are out of Canada, 
but it wasn't intended to take into consideration the 
in ternational driver's licence at a ll , just if you are a 
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resident of the Yukon Territory. you should only have 
one valid operator's licence in your possession. 

We have the same problem r ight across Canada. 
and this is another thing that we are trying to, through 
the C.C.M.T.A., we are trying to make this a universa l 
requirement. Several of the provinces have this now. If 
the Yukon operator goes down to Ontario or some place 
like that, and once he becomes resident, then he is 
required to get an operator's licence down there, he 
must turn in his Yukon licence before they will issue 
him an Ontario licence. They will not let him have 
more than one valid licence. 

Mr. Chai•·man: Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, if a person goes 
out for the winter for say, three, four, five months, I 
would suppose in the provinces he really can't do that, 
he has to get a provincial dr iver 's licence. 

Take for instance, our Member of Parl iament as a 
good example. He spends a great deal of time down in 
Ottawa, and he spends a great deal of time here. 
Which , you know, in which jurisdiction should he have 
a licence, or should he change his licenses every lime 
he comes and goes? 

Mr. lle•·b Taylor: If he sets up his residence and if 
he is a resident of the Yukon, his licence, his Yukon 
licence is recognized in Ontario. 

lion. Mr. Taylo•·: Yes, well, Mr. Chairman. take the 
case of the person who goes out for the winter and who 
goes to another jyrisdiction, provincial jurisdiction. 
and stays out there four or five months, that would be 
contrary to the law of the province in terms of 
reciprocal agreements, would it not? 

M1·. Herb Taylor: The reciprocal arrangement 
a llow for approximately, I think, six months in every 
jurisdiction before you need -

lion. M1·. Taylor: If you are working? 

Mr. lle•·b Taylo•·: Even if you are working, for an 
operators licence, yes. Just for the very purpose. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Well how about a driver 's licence? 

Mr. Herb Taylor: That is what I am talking about. 
That is an operators licence. If an Alberta, B.C. or an 
Ontario high-school or university student comes up 
here to work for the summer he can work here for six 
months and still use his home jurisdiction operators 
licence. He doesn't need to get a Yukon operators 
licence. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: We have a conflict here of t he 
time requirement, it applies only to the licence but not 
to the plates. Come on, let 's have a little system. 
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lion. Mr. Taylo1·: That is what I was getting at. 

M1·. Herb Taylor: Well that is exactly right. The 
operators licence is entirely different than the vehicle 
licence. 

Mr. ChaiJ·man: Eighteen: 
(Reads Section 18) 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: I am quite concerned about this, using 
headlights only during the night. Our highway con­
ditions are in such bad shape and the dust control that I 
think headlights should be mandatory at all times. It is 
only for atmospheric conditions. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Mr. Chairman this section makes 
it mandatory wherever a highway is posted, you see 
the s ign on the highway now "Keep Headlights On At 
All Times". This section makes it illegal to drive on 
that road without your headlights on. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

l-Ion. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, though 
agree in this case that perhpas it may be desirable to 
have a ll vehicles, ·specially in the summer months, 
driving during the daylight hours with lights on at all 
times, I disagree very strongly with sub (2). I don't feel 
that this should be a mandatory provision. I think that 
all effort should be made to advise and encourage the 
public to drive with headlights on, but, as far as I am 
concerned I am unalterably opposed to having this 
section 2 in the Ordinance. I don't believe it is 
necessary, I don't think it should be placed into law at 
this time. There are many, many circumstances by 
which people could be prosecuted, perhaps they are 
having vehicle difficulty and cannot maintain their 
lights at that given point, oh, there is many, many 
things. No, I have heard much discussion on this 
subject, this as well as s~at belt legisla tion. In this 
case, no, I am unalterably opposed and if this remains 
in the Bill I would have second questions about sup­
porting the Bill I feel very strongly that this should not 
be law. 

I think that this should be a public awareness 
program at this time. If we wind up with slaughters on 
our highways as a result of not having head lights on at 
all times, well, perhaps we would look at it again. But 
as far as I am concerned, I don't see that happening, 
and I am unalterably opposed to th is section . You can 
laugh a ll you want. I will tell you. you are going to have 
one vote against this Bill if this remains in . 
. This is just another sncak:v· infringement upon a 
person's civil rights in this country. You may laugh at 
them and I don 't. I don 't think it is necessary. it is just 
another unnecessary law. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman. my first question has 
been answered. I was going to ask if the s igns that sa:v 

"at all times" on the highway really meant it, and 
whether or not this would be enforced. I am quite in 
disagreement with the Member from Watson Lake. I 
think it is about lime that we had legislation which 
controlled the traffic lights on the highways. There 
have been many, many times that I have narrowly 
escaped been slaughtered myself on that highway 
because of people who are passing without their lights 
on and dust all over the place. 

I don't think this is an infringement on anyone's 
rights. Their lights have to work according to Motor 
Vehicle Regulations. If they don't work they should go 
and get them fixed. 

lion. Mr. Taylor: Well I disagree, and so do a lot of 
Yukoners. 

Mr. Chairman: Nineeteen-one: 
CReads Section 190 l l 

M1·. Chainnan: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I am curious when this legislation was 
written up, I can see some imposing remarks to what I 
am going to say. When this language was written up, 
was there any considerations given to infractions of 
this legislation concerning vehicles going down the 
highway with only one headP~ht on? This is where a 
number of accidents have taken place, especially with 
the heavy trucks on the Klondike -.Campbell highways? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie? 

Mr. Gillcst>ie: Mr. Chairman, part of the weakness 
in the Ordinance the way it reads not is that only one 
was required - sorry - if you are talking a bout tail 
lights. If you are talking about headlights that is 
simply a matter for enforcement. 

Ml'. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. l\IcCall: Jam curious as to why, if there is 
provision in the legislation, why it is not enforced a 
lillie more severely, especially with some of our heavy 
equipment that is on the highways, which has created a 
lot of very fatal accidents. 

Mr. (;iiJespie: Mr . Chairman we are equally 
curious. We would like to see that much better en­
forced. as well. 

Mr. Chairman: Two: 
meads Section 19(2) l 

l\1r. Chairman: Four: 
meads Section 19(4l l 

l\1r. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

l\1,r. l\h·Call: This is another point that J would like 
to bring to thr attention of our adm inistration. 
Clearance lights. If we just took a walk down to the 
111ajor carrier of this 'I'<'tTitory :v·ou will find that most 
of the conta iners that a re used for the transportation of 
concentrates from Cyprus Anvil Mines to a drop off in 
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Whitehorse here, you will fi nd that they have no 
clearance lights . I am just wondering if there is an 
exception considered here? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the Territorial gover­
nment has made no exception for the carrier. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall : Then why hasn 't the legislation been 
enforced? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the enforcement 
agency in this case is the R.C.M.P . They have not, 
either seen fit , or have been able with the manpower 
they have available to them to perform the sort of en­
forcement that you are seeking, and that we too, are 
seeking in this regard. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: The thing I am pondering over is, here 
we are today considering change·s in the Ordinance 
concerning the operation of a motor-vehicle. We have 
heard the Honourable Member from Watson Lake 
show a considerable amount of concern over a certain 
section in this piece of legislation. Here we are, we are 
going to pass this through again and it is of no value. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, in regard to what the 
Honourable Member from Pelly had to say, and with 
regards to the comments that I have heard by the wit­
nesses, I would think that it would be in order for, cer­
tainly the Territorial government, then at this time, if 
we are considering and further considering major 
legislation as this, that we sit down with the R.C.M.P. 
and talk about enforcement and find out what the 
problems are. Let's get a meeting of this forthwith. I 
think it very important, you know, if I hear that 
vehicles are running up and down the road with one 
light and the thing can't be enforced, then obviously 
there is a problem. There must be some budgetary con­
siderations and everything else, but let's find out why. 
Let's get on with it. 

Further to that I would just like to say that I hope 
the major carrier in this City, who is hauling con­
centrates, I hope their vehicles have, in fact, clearance 
lights. I am sure they do, they may not be working. 
Again that is a case of enforcement and I think 
somebody should be looking at that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, I think there is nothing 
easier to enforce lights and the checking of lights for a 
major carrier like White Pass or anybody else, they 
have to go to the weigh scale, What is much easier then 
for the weigh scale operator to check theiJ.t lights. It 
doesn'thave to be the R.C.M.P. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman I would not think 
that that should be a charge against the weigh scale 
operator, he has enough problems with weighing 
trucks without running around and playing mechanic 
or some light function. I don't think that is the answer. 
Not the weigh scale operator himself, anyway. 

Mr. Chairman: Section 41 of the said Ordinance is 
furth er amended by adding the following new sub­
section : Five: 
meads Section (5) l 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman I would like to ask 
Mr. Legal Advisor as to why it is always the word 
"practical " and does this really cover. or could it be 
more or less construed as just an advice to put the 
lamp somewhere near that spot, and possibly some of 
them may not where you can see them. 

l\'11-. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman, it has a 
meaning . There may be some technical reason why a 
socket may not be screwed in at a certain point , but it 
must be as near as practical. It is a guide and it is a lso 
legisla tion . 

Mr. Chail·man: Twenty: 
(Reads Section 20) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McCall? 

M1·. McCall: You see here we are again wi th that 
particular language, one red lan1p on the rear end of a 
semi-trailer. I can envisage what could happen in 
many instances. 

Mr. Cha irman: Twenty-one: 
(Reads Section 21 l 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: That puzzles me. Section 19 specifies 
two tail lights on any motor vehicle, yet on a semi­
trailer, which is much bigger and much more 
dangerous than any other thing, it only r equires one 
tail light, why? 

Mr. Chail·man: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Well this is what I am saying, Mr. 
Chairman, the language here- I don 't know, it seems 
it was written up in the kindergarten style as far as I 
am concerned, because they deal with a bicycle here 
with one lamp and then you talk about a sem i-traile r , 
which is about 60 feet long and weighing quite a few 
tons , and one red lamp at the back. What significant 
va lue is that going to be when you have got dust behind 
you, or in front of you? 

lion. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I suggest the 



Page 127 

Honourable Member suggest some recommendations 
if he is not pleased with the language. That is why we 
are discussing it at this table. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I was just going to say that 45(1 > 
does say "a vehicle other than a motor-vehicle. semi­
trailer" . so in fact a semi -trailer does have to carry 
two lights. 

I am-concerned about the section, when you say "a 
vehicle other than a motor-vehicle, sem i-trailer, 
trailer, oh pardon me, it does include it. that is fine. 
then a recreation trailer is included. 

Mr. Chail·man : Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: That was to be my comment also. I 
don 't know whether we arc getting late in the day or 
not. I can't figure out what would be the description of 
this vehicle that doesn't come under here? Santa 
Claus' sleigh is the only thing I can think of. 

M1·. Chail·man: Mr . Berger? 

Mr. Berge•·: Since nobody wants to do it I would like 
to see Section 20, 44 .(1) changed to two tail lights. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Mr . Chairman you must 
remember that the requirement is there for clearance 
lights on the back ~ semi-trailers and this is a bare 
minimum , this sect.on 44. We want them to make sure 
they have at least one red lamp at the back. They are 
required to have the four clearance lights at the back of 
the semi-trailer. 

Mr. Chail·man: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I beg to differ with the witness , Mr. 
Chairman, when you are talking about one red lamp, or 
reflector, you are talking about the width of a vehicle. 
It should be compulsory, there should be at least two 
reflectors apart from lights. whether they are 
clearance lights or otherwi!;e. 

I think we are missing the point here on what the 
Honourable Member from Klondike just brought up, I 
strongly suggest that we enact it because I can see the 
accident ratio carrying on the way if is now. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Ml'. BE>rger: iVlr. Chairman. I would like to go one 
step further. I would like to separ ate the tail lights 
from the brake lights . I would like to see separate 
identities in there, or three, actually. Two red 
clearance lights, two red tail lights and two red brake 
lights. This should be spelled out in this Ordinance. 

1\11'. Gillespi<': Mr. Chairman I am not familiar with 
what the manufacturers make in the way of the dif­
ferent trucks that they produce -

Mr. ·Berger : They are making them . 

Mr. Gillespi<': Are they making them with all of 
these -

Mr. lh~•·b Taylor: Mr . Chairman on the previous 
page we call for tha t, on page 10. <c > we call for at leas t 
two stop lamps on the rear of the vehicle. 

Now you are going to have so many lights on the 
rear of the vehicle it is going to look like a Christmas 
tree if you are not careful. 

Mr. ( 'ha il'man : Mr . Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: They do call for two stop lamps and 
generally the manufacturers who build this equipment 
incorporate into the brake lights or the stop lamps the 
clearance lights as well , not clearance lights, taillights 
as well. Really there would be nothing wrong with 
amending 44(1) to say a semi-trailer or tr11iler shall 
carry at least two operating red lamps at the rear . I 
would be quite in accord with that. No hardship. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman. One of these is 
dealing with the large trailers and semi-trailers which 
is at the foot of page ten. Here you are putting the bare 
minimum because it might be somebody who is just 
bringing a skidoo home on a trai ler at 9 o'clock at night 
and he may not be fitted up for all these gadgets . You 
a re just dealing with a trailer. It so happens that in the 
drafting, semi-trailer was thrown in because wherever 
trailer appeared semi-trailer was thrown in . 

We are dealing with a little small guy who is 
bringing a boat home from the lake. We are not dealing 
with the giant companies who have got giant trucks. 

Mr. Cha irman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. But Mr. Legal 
Advisor shouldn't that be defined here then that this is 
a small what, I may ask you what the licence is that 
you buy for a small utility trailer, am I not right, 
should not this be defined as a utility trailer then? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman it is defined in 
the reverse way. All of the big Christmas tree lights 
are on a vehicle which is more than 20 feet in length, or 
more than eighty feet in width that then attracts all of 
the big regulations. If it is less than that it is deemed to 
be a small thing. 

Mr. Chai•·man: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I beg to differ with the Legal Advisor, ( / 
your language here is dealing with semi-trailers and 
trailers of any size or description. As far as I am 
concerned you should have more than one light on 
those tra ilers. whether he is bringing home a skidoo or 
whatever he is bringing home. Most of these lights that 
you are referring to are on the wrong side of the vehicle 
to start with. They are never on the middle-- crown of 
the road side of the vehicle. That is where all the ac­
cidents occur when you run into or rear end a trailer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Can I suggest a proper wording for 
section 20 then? A semi-trailer or trailer shall carry at 
least two operating red lamps at the rear that is clearly 
visible at a distance of at least two hundred feet. and 
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Wf! are talking of semi-trailer or trailer. If you want to 
take the trailer out of there, that is a different story. A 
semi-trailer definitely. 

Mr. Chairman: Is that a motion? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Could I have your wording of it? 

1\11·. Lengerke: I would say a semi-trailer, again I 
think we have got some confl.jcts here, you are going to 
have to eliminate one word or the other, semi -trailer or 
trailer- do you want to cover them both-okay, we will 
cover them both. It will read. A semi-trailer or trailer 
shall carry at least two operating red lamps at the rear 
that is clearly visible at a distance of at least two 
hundred feet. 

Mr. Chairman: Or reflectors. 

Mr. Lengerke: I would say operating red lamps-

Ml". Chairman: Or reflectors. 

Mr. Lrngerke: All right, if that is the wishes. 

Mr. llrrb Taylor: The is reason for having reflector 
there in case they have a light failure. 

Mr. Lengerke : Yes, that is a good point. That is it. 

Mr. Gillespie: We have no objection, the ad­
ministration have no objection to that. 

M1·. Chairman: Is there a seconder to that motion? 

M1·. McCall: Is it a motion? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes. Just a suggested change, 
would think. 

Hon. Mr. Taylo•·: Or it could be treated as a 
typographical error, one of the two. 

Mr. Lengerke: Well can we make that change now, 
Mr. Chairman , if we are agreed to the wording, can't 
we make it. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: There will be other changes 
com ing forth. 

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-two. 
<Reads Section 22) 

Mr. Chah·man: Ms. Millard? 

' Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I was accused earlier 
of splitting hairs, and maybe I am doing that again · 
here, but. where it says at the lop, "during the period 
when lighted lamps are required" I understand that on 
our highways that would be at all times, is thai 
correct? 
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Mr. llrrb Tayllw: Mr. Chairman if the thing is 
passed it will be on highways that are signed with that 
requirement that lighted lamps are required. 

Ms. Millard: So. Mr. Chairman. this would be in 
effect at all times? 

Mr. llerb Taylor: Where signed, yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-three. 
(Reads Section 23) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman I am slightly confused 
here, back to 22 (1) (3) it says, "during the period when 
lighted lamps are not required" and yet we are 
speaking of lights on the highway at all times, and 
lights when there is an accident, lamps. or reflecting 
devices at all times. Why should we have that in there 
when they are not required? There is no such thing is 
ther? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, there are times on 
some highways when lighted lamps are not required. 
Lighted lamps will only be required on those highways 
that are so marked. On other highways they may not be 
required. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: During the day. 

Mr. Gillespie: During the day. 

Mr. Fleming: Very well, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-four 
(Reads Section 24) 

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-five. 
<Reads Section 25) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, just for 
clarification, does this apply to these skidoos? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I think so, if they are motor-
vehicles, yes. 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Just a question to the witnesses. When 
can we expect in the future sometime, I realize that it 
can't be possible right now, a definite noise level like 30 
decibels or 90 decibels or something like this? I mean 
right now we say an acceptable noise level. Just sitting 
here the vehicles operatin in the City --there should be 
a definite limit set for this thing. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, as I understand it, the 
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levels would be set by regulation as we acquire the 
ability to monitor with equipment, those regulations. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Mr. Chairman, they are doing 
that now with skidoos at the manufacturers level, they 
must have their noise cut down to a certain number of 
decibels on the newly manufactured skidoos. Trucks on 
the highway, I don 't know. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am slightly 
confused over this one that says-- 24 (7), the combined 
brakes of towing vehicle and the semi-trailer or trailer 
shall be adjusted as to prevent side-sway or jack­
knifing when applied. I am quite sure that there would 
be no onus on the driver for something if he did have an 
accident and his truck did jack-knife. Due to this little 
paragraph it possibly could be. They may be ad­
justed very well and everything but they are not going 
to stop him from side-swaying or jacknifing when they 
are applied if the road conditions are bad, I can assure 
you. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It would be very hard to base a 
conviction on it but it might give rise to a civil action if 
the brakes were adjusted wrongly so that the ap­
plication of the brakes itself was proved to cause a 
jack-knifing effect. 

Mr. Cha'irman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: · Mr. Chairman, does sub (7) --is 
sub (7) related to (6) where you have to-- the ability is 
rated on a dry road and so forth. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It refers to that but it is not 
directly rela ted. The adjustment is such that jack­
knifing will not occur when the foot is put on the brake. 
Apparently it is a scientific matter. 

l\1r. Chail·man: Mr . T::1ylor? 

Hon. M1·. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, it can be the case 
where brakes can freeze. I mean , we have climatic and 
certain other conditions in this cour.try which perhaps 
are peculi ar , and I think this should be taken into ac­
count. They could be adjusted all right, and yet , you 
know, they may not function normally. 

M1·. Chairman : Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Be•·ger: All we can do, I concur with Mr. 
Taylor. I don 't know how many people drove a semi­
trailer in this Assembly here but the thing is you can 
leave the garage and with a per fect brake set up , and 
you have just got to go in the muddy road condition or 
something and your brakes are completely useless so I 
think this should be specified, and I would suggest they 
put in , "on a dry, hard, level highway" in case of a 
check or something like this. 

Mr. Herb Taylor : Mr. Chairman , you would have 

to remember again that it would have to be proven that 
it was the adjustment of the brakes that caused the 
thing to jackknife, not the climatic or road conditions. 
That would have to be proven before you could take 
any action . 

Mr. Chai•·man : Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman , malfunction of any 
part of this equipment is a distinct possibility, and it 
could be unknown to the operator at the time of the 
accident. 

M1·. Herb Taylor: That 's exactly right. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I can certainly sympathize with the 
Honourable Member from Watson Lake, because you 
can't legisla te against things like that. You have to say 
that with r easonable common sense that these brakes 
will be so adjusted, and you have to try and put into 
being, that this kind of maintenance will be done, but 
you certainly--{)nce the truck leaves, and you r un into 
snow conditions or mud conditions, that has nothing to 
do with the adjustment of the brakes. That is a cir­
cumstance, and this kind of clause is very common, 
and I'm fam iliar with many Motor Vehicle Ordinances, 
believe me, and the United States are working on this 
one of braking, and have been for quite some time and 
that clause appears, and it's one of-really it's quite 
acceptable to me . 

M1·. Herb Taylor: Mr. Chairman , the same thing 
would apply to lighted head lamps, you can leave town 
right now and five minutes on the road you might find 
you have only got one hea d lamp left, and there is 
nothing we can do about that, except to stop you and 
tell you to replace the headlight. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Sniff your breath. 

Mr. Herb Taylor: Right. Stop check program 

Mr. Chairman: 26: Sub-section 58 (2) of the said 
Ordinance is repealed and the following is substituted· 
therefor: (2): 
<Reads Section 58 (2) ) 

Mr. Chairman : 27: Section 59 of the said Ordinance 
is repealed and the following substituted therefor: ( 1) : 
(Reads Section 59 (1) ) 

Mr. Chairman: (2): 
<Reads Section 59 (2) ) 

Mr. Chairman: 28: Section 63 of the said Ordinance 
is repealed and the following substituted therefore: 
(1) : 

(Reads Section 63 (1) l 

Mr. Chairman: Reads Section 63(2)) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 
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lion. Mr. Taylot·: Mr . Chairman . th is is on<· case 
where many wintishirltj<; g0 i!"! tr r Y•Jl<t)n Trrriton, at 
least. It's from these little two wheeled t railers, and 
it 's usually non-residents. It's people perhaps going 
through to Alaska, and with unguarded or un­
protected- no m udguards, t hat's wha t it is. and I'm 
just wondering how you would enforce this sort of 
thing, bec ause these little carts come up and down thl' 
road, and they jus t heave a constant hail of rocks, and 
that's where I think just a bout every rock I hav<• got. I 
think I have got one from a semi-traile r . and about :W 
from these little trailers, and they just ke<'p th is spnt~· 
up. 

How would you enforce t hat in the ca se of th<· non­
res idents? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Cha irman, I'm not sure of till' 
ans wer to tha t question. because the par ticular 
vehicles Mr. Taylor is speaking of, I don 't belie\P 
would be one ton in weig ht, and the refore would not lw 
covered by this Section . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . F lem ing? 

1\11'. Fleming : Possibly, Mr . Chairman - this is 
very - I think Mr. Gillespie is probahly right in that 
sense, at the same tim e I feel ve ry strongly we s hould 
put some legislation into th is , for that type of small 
trailer because they are the cause of a good manv 
broken winds hields. I have dri ven many thousands of 
m iles on this highway, a nd I ha ve goi manv bumps 
from that very thing, the s m all little trailer swinging 
behind the car that goes up -

Mr. Chait·man: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millat·d: Mr. Chairman , I ha\e a question for 
the Mr. Gillsepie. 

In all these cases we hav<' bee n ta lking about indws 
and feet and everything else. When is theTerritorial 
Government going to be converting to the nwtric 
system in the Highways Depar tment ? 

Mt·. Gillespie: Mr . Chairman , I don't haw tIll' 
ans wer to that question. 

Mr. Chairman : Ms. Millard ? 

Ms. Millan!: Mr. Cha irman , W<' do hav<' scht•dulPs. 
don 't we? I think the re reallv is a sC'hedule in tlw 
governm ent for converti ng . · 

lion. Mr. Lang: Mr . Cha irm a n. !he r<' IS no stlwdul<· 
at thi s point. 

No, we do have a commit tee for the chang< ·O\'l'l' 

for metrication for various departm ents . but that 's as 
far a s it's gone. except for the sig ns tha t 1\l rs Watson 
has referred to earlier . 

How to ruin a good day. 

Mr. Chairman : 29: The sa id Ord inance is further 
am ended by adding thereto the following new sect ions: 
64. ]()): 

HP, cb !' ·ction G4.1 I I ll 

;\lr. ( h,lirnwn: li-1.2! l l: 
t Hl'acls Section ti4.21 Ill 

;\II· Chairman: 64.:HI l: 
<Hl'ad~ ~l'ttinn fii.~( J ll 
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:'llr ( hainnan: :!0 The said Ordinance is amended 
hy ;,dd•n(' th(·1·cto tlw fo llowing new Sections: 75. 1 (1 l : 
< Hl•ads SPction 75.1 <Ill 

\lr ('lt,titnHIII: !2): 
1. Hcac!s C:.,u•ion 7.') 112ll 

\II·. Chairman: 1\.Tr. Lengerke? 

\11'. I l'ltgt·•·kt•: 1\.laybe I could have some 
d:n·1twat on on this. I r ('ally wonder if it is practical, 
that seetio 1. hel·aust' wha t if in the Yukon here, we 
hmt• <:J) 'I truck on the Canton Road or something, 
that's m•·olvc·J in some sort of a mishap, an accident. 
and ill ord.'r to n•mo\·e the veh icle from that point, a nd 
lhio.; has l•<~ppened many t imes, they might have to pull 
a lender .ma) from the wheel or something like th is 
and 111 i.Jcl arc able to ge t tha t vehicle back into 
opera11011 and hat·k down to where they can repair it 
total!\ . 

1\t:fon· they l'<Ul do tha t. in th is section. they would 
hal<' ltlloolify thr H.C.l\.l.P. and they would have to get 
it 111 wnllllJ'. Would w<• not he a ble to have a phone call 
o1· somt• ki11d of authority this way , you know- in fact 
<'Vf'r ,l ph•.'•P <',Ill might IH• impract ical. because you 
l'lip,lll rr• ht ncar a phorw. but it concerns me a little 
In' )1('1'1' 

:\'<~) t,, l'l" Lt·gal Advisor. I think he probably knows 
\' 1 I ulll J,l'ltall!' at. and maybe he can ta ke that into 
a ~;, .. nt'.ll. 

,,Jr lc•g<.~ l \rl\isur: It is something perhaps which 
l\1r T.~~lor und '\Jr. Gill<>sp1e can think of. 

II· (;illl'spie. I lhmk the point here is that - is in 
t hl' f rs' s 1' l" nl'P of 75 1 sub-sect ion 1. " no person shall 
ro~llllH'IIC•' !lc rPp<Jirs", and I wouldn 't think that the 
lm1 would l<11lstnl•' movi ng t he vehic le in the way that 
you llll'nt IOJ1,•d as ht•ing 

\II I PnJH'I'kl': \\'I'll. my poin t is that if the fender is 
pushl'd n. n ·a ub h<ls eollapsed in some way and you 
11ant to ,,,,,h !I ou• in order to free some of the working 
parts of till' vcludP, tha t in fact you rea lly are com­
n •Pil('lll!! ~onw kn d of rt'pair . At least if there was an 
ii: ·pr(t,lt on hcrl' finl' I a m quite ha ppy . I am just 
w<J 111ng 10 t'l.tke sure tha t W<' don't get into problems 
\1 ith I( 

\1•·. (;iJit•sJlit•: i\lr Cha irman. I think the point. to 
Ill<' at least. appt>ars IH'll ta ken and I would li ke to take 
it 01 11 for :tdnst•molt. if I may. 

:'llr. l.t·ngt•t·kp: Tha nk you . 
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Mr. Chait·man: Mr. Berger. 

Mr. Bet·ger: There are vehicles on the roads these 
days that have oversized tires on there, real wide tires 
projecting from the body, and I think those vehicles, I 
mean I know definitely they are spraying gravel 
something furiously. I think they should be included in 
this. The wheel projecting from the body should also 
have mud-guards, especially recreation vehicles. You 
have vehicles with tires that wide and only one third of 
it is under the body or the mud-guard. 

Mr. llerb Taylm·: Mr. Chairman that is what it says 
right now , with respect. 

Mt·. Berger: Not really . 

Mr. llerb Taylor: In 63(1 ). 63( 1) that is what it says. 
It has to have mud-guards that adequately protect it 
from spray or else part of the body protect it from the 
spray from the wheels. That doesn't necessarily mean 
spray of water. 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, maybe it is an 
argument again of enforcement, because I haven't 
seen very very few of these recreation vehicles with 
mud-guards on there. or it doesn't have to be a 
recreation vehicle. There is lots of pick-ups and cars 
running around like this. 

Mr. Gillespie. That is correct. 

Mt·. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mt·. Lengerke: Again I can appreciate the com­
ments of the Member from Klondike, but it really does 
concern me, especially in the Territory where we do 
try to promote tourism and the rest of it, we have a lot 
of recreation vehicles and recreation trailers coming 
up. If you are going to enforce this. and it could be 
enforced, you would have to stop every vehicle at the 
border and turn them around or make them put on a set 
of mud-flaps. I think we stould seriously look at this 
before we- you know, I fully appreciate your concern, 
but it is a matter of enforcing it and a matter of dollars 
and cents involved here. 

Mt·. Bet·get·: It is a matter of costing me a new 
windshield. 

Mt·. Lengerke: I think it is a matter of education, 
really. I think it is a matter of educating people that 
are driving on, or wish to drive on gravel roads, or take 
a trip on the Alaska Highway, this kind of thing. that. 
you know, by all means have mud-flaps. I think you can 
even see results of this in the fact that people coming 
up on the Alaska Highway with recreation vehicles 
have got windshield guards and this kind of thing. That 
didn't just happen over night. That was a result of 
expereince and people travelling th is way have asked 
others what they require. I think this is the kind of 
thing that you can do through a publicity program. 

Mr. Chairman: I think in view of the hour, the 
witnesses will be excused. Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: The Chair will now entertain a 
motion for Mr. Speaker to resume the Chair. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I move that Mr. 
Speaker do now resume the Chair. 

Mr. Berget·: I second that. 

Mr. Chairman: Agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chah·man: Motion carried. 

Motion Carried 

MR. SPEAKER RESUMES THE CHAIR 

Mt·. Speaker: May we have a report from the 
Chairman of Committees? 

Dr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, Committee convened at 
10:45 this morning to discuss Bills, Sessional Papers 
and Motions. 

The amendments to Bill Number 1 were reviewed. I 
can now report progress thereon. 

The Committee recessed at 11:45 a.m. and recon­
vened at 1:30 p.m. to consider Rill number 8. 

The Minister for Health , Welfare and Rehabilitation 
requested that Doctors Mason-Brown, Tanner and 
Asfeldt, and Mr. Duncan, Adminstrator of the Yukon 
Health Care Insurance Service be called as witness to 
consider Bill number 8. 

Committee agreed. Dr. Hibberd then turned over 
the Chair to Mr. McCall. 

I can report progress on Bill Number 8. 
The Chair reverted to Dr. Hibberd and a brief 

recess was called at 3:10. 
Committee reconvened at 3:20 to consider Bill 

Number 9 with Mr. Gillespie and Mr. Taylor as wit­
nesses. 

I can report progress on Bill Number 9. 
It was moved by Mr. McCall seconded by Mr. 

Berger that Mr. Speaker do now resume the Chair and 
that motion was duly carried. 

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the report of the 
Chairman of Committees, are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure at 
this time? 

The Honourable Member from Ogilvie? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I move that we call it five 
o'clock. 

Mr. Lengerke: I second that. 
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Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale that we now call it 
five o'clock. Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed . 
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Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion carried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjourned 
until 10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning . 

.Adfoumed.' 
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December 1st, 1975. 

Mr. Speaker, 
Members of Council 

On Wednesday, November 26th, Councillor Millard 
asked the following question : 

"The Depar tment of Indian Eskimo Affairs Child 
Care Budget cites a unit monthly cost of Child Care of 
$282.05, 86.4 per cent of which is paid to the Territory 
Government by them . Since the monthly unit cost of a 
foster home according to statistics given in April 1975 
ranges from a $127.50 to $168.00 a month , how is the 
rema ining amount per month which ranges from 
$154.55 to $114.05 spent?" 

The answer is as follows : 

l) 

The Director of Child Welfare for the Yukon 
Territory invoices Indian Eskimo Affairs for a ll costs 
incurred on behalf of Indian Status Children who are in 
the care of the Dir ector. These costs are 100 per cent 
recoverable from Indian Eskimo Affairs. The costs 
incurred involve more expenditures than foster home 
rates, namely $127.50 to $168.00; they include 
recoveries of group home rates , clothing , tran -' 
sportation and a ll other miscellaneous expenditures. 
The figure $282.05 unit cost is an Indian Eskimo Affairs 
cost, and we are informed by Indian Eskimo Affairs ' 
that the difference in the amount expended and 
recovered by Y.T.G . is incurred by Indian Eskimo 
Affairs directly with the Department of Human 
Resources in British Columbia and for their own 
" private" child care placements . 

Flo Whyard, 
Member , 

Executive Committee. 
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